
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

March 9, 2017, 6:00 PM 
Seven Oak Middle School 

550 Cascades Drive, Lebanon, Oregon 97355 

 WELCOME 
 Call to Order 
 Flag Salute 
 Audience Comments: This is a time for citizens to address the Board. The Chair will recognize speaker(s) at the  

designated time. All speakers should identify themselves and state their name before speaking. Speakers are asked to  
write their name, address, and phone number. Each speaker will be allowed 3 minutes. The Board typically 
will not respond to comments during this time. 

 Audience Comments: Regarding Naming of Pioneer School Library in honor of Sergeant First Class Scot R. Noss  
(First of Two Meetings Required) 

 GOOD NEWS/COMMUNITY COMMUNICATIONS 
 Report: Seven Oak Middle School (Enclosure B-1)  
 Report: Seven Oak Awarded 2017 Champions of Breakfast Award for Tradition of Excellence in School Breakfast  

Service 
 Report: Distinguished Service Awards 
 Report: Europe Bound and AVID Parent Night 

 GENERAL BUSINESS 
 Policies 

 Action: Adopt Board Policies on Second Reading (Enclosure C-1)  
 Policy JFCIA: Student Drug Testing – new 
 Policy JFCIA-AR: Student Drug Testing – new 

 Report: STAR Assessment Presentation (Enclosure C-2)  
 Report: English Learners Presentation (Enclosure C-3)  
 Report: Sand idge School Report (Enclosure C-4)  
 Action: Superintendent’s Recommendations for Renewal and Non-Renewal 
 Action: Approve 2017-2018 School Calendar (Enclosure C-5)  
 Action: Approve use of funds for construction course (Enclosure C-6)  

 DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 Finance 

 Report (Enclosure D-1)  
 Report: Obsolete Equipment 

 Operations 
 Human Resources 

 COMMUNICATION 
 Board 
 Superintendent 

 Update on District 360 Degree Survey (Enclosure E-1)  

 CONSENT AGENDA 
 Action: Approve February 9, 2017 Board Minutes (Enclosure F-1)  
 Action: Approve Hiring/Transfers/Leave of Absence 

 Laura Archer, Teacher – Seven Oak Middle School – Leave of Absence 2017-2018 school year 
 Kristine Bergquist, Special Education Teacher – Riverview School (Temporary 2016-2017) 
 Rebecca Lippmann, Biology Teacher – Lebanon High School (Temporary 2016-2017) 

 ADJOURN 

Page 1



 
 
 

 
 

   
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
   
   

  
  

 

The Lebanon Community School District Board of Directors welcomes you to our regular meeting.  It is the Board's desire to 
hold an effective and efficient meeting to do the business of the District.  In keeping with that objective the Board provides a 
place for AUDIENCE COMMENTS on each of its regular agendas. This is a time when you can provide statements or ask 
questions. The Board allows three minutes for each speaker.  The following quote is instructive to the Board and its visitors. 

"The Public Meetings Law is a public attendance law, not a public participation law.  Under the Public Meetings Law, 
governing body meetings are open to the public except as otherwise provided by law.  ORS 192.630 The right of public 
attendance guaranteed by the Public Meetings Law does not include the right to participate by public testimony or comment." 

"Other statutes, rules, charters, ordinances, and bylaws outside the Public Meetings Law may require governing bodies to hear 
public testimony or comment on certain matters.  But in the absence of such a requirement, a governing body may conduct a 
meeting without any public participation.  Governing bodies voluntarily may allow limited public participation at their 
meetings." Oregon Attorney General's Administrative Law Manual and Uniform and Model Rules of Procedure under the 
Administrative Procedures Act. Hardy Myers, Attorney General, March 27, 2000. 

FUTURE MEETINGS 
April 13, 2017 Riverview School 
April 27, 2017 District Office – Board Room 
May 11, 2017 District Office – Board Room 
May 25, 2017 District Office – Board Room 

Page 2



Enclosure B-1

$tVtN 

Page 3



Enclosure B-1

Lebanon Community 
Schools 

Board Goals 

Page 4

A 
s 
s 
E 

• s .. 
s 
M 
E 
N 

~ • 
Grad Attendance 

Rates .. ~ • .. ~ • 



Enclosure B-1

• AVID: College & Career Readiness for all 

o Schoolwide Strategies 

o AVID Elective 

• RTI: Providing differentiated academic support for all 

o Tier 1 and 2 Thursday morning meetings 

o Tier 3 Wednesday morning meetings 

• PBIS: Providing differentiated behavior support for all 

o PSIS team plans schoolwide incentives for positive 

o 

behavior 

Data analysis monthly to determine focus areas 
Page 5



Enclosure B-1

Staff uses inquiry-based, collaborative 
strategies to challenge and engage students in 
content resulting in increasingly complex levels 
of understanding. Expectations are high for all. 

Students are introduced to a variety of course 
offerings to get them thinking beyond middle 
school and preparing for high school, college and 
career. AVID schoolwide teaches students 
organization and study habits to prepare them for 
the educational challenges ahead. 

We strive to create a positive environment where 
every student feels accepted and valued. 
Numerous opportunities, from electives to sports 
and clubs, give students choice and voice to 
pursue their interests and feel connected to Seven 
Oak. Page 6



Enclosure B-1

• Advanced Courses 

Band 
o Math, LA, Science, Social Studies, Art, 

Opportunities 
& 

Support 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

o 2017-18 Spanish 
• Support Classes (Plus and Lab) 
• 17 Elective Offerings 
• AVID Schoolwide 
• Sports 

o Football, Volleyball, Cross Country, 
Wrestling, Track 

• Clubs 
o Art, STEM, Environment, Math Zone, 

Chess 
• 0808 

Science Olympiad 
Student Government 
Daily drawings for positive behavior 
Students of the Week 
Students of the Month 
Stand-up Spartans 

• Full-time counseling 
• Full-time behavior support 
• Alternative Learning Environments Page 7



Enclosure B-1

Electives 
2016-17 

• 17 Courses Offered 
• 34 Sections (-peer tutors) 

• AVID 
• Spanish 
• Leadership 
• Art, Advanced Art 
• Science STEM 
• Beginning, Intermediate and 

Advanced Band 
• Jazz Band 
• Choir 
• Peace Jam 
• Multicultural Studies 
• Publications 
• Theater 
• Peer Tutor 
• Office Assistant 

Page 8



Enclosure B-1

2016-17 

Attendance • Through January 2017 
o 80.3% Green Zone 
o 9.3% Red Zone 

2015-16 
• Through January 2016 

o 78% Green Zone 
o 11 % Red Zone 

Page 9



Enclosure B-1

Year to Year Comparison 

Attendance Attendance 

2016-17 
2015-16 

G y R 

G y R 

Sept 84% 8% 8% 

Sept 83.9 7.4 8.7 

Oct 79% 10% 11% 

Oct 79.5 12.2 8.2 

Nov 76.8 11.1 10.2 
Nov 78% 10% 12% 

Dec 81.9 10.6 6.7 Dec 79% 11% 9% 

Jan 80.3 10.5 9.3 Jan 78% 10 11 

Shaded Green Indicates improvement from previous year. Page 10



Enclosure B-1

• Challenge 5 Campaign 
o Challenge students to miss 

five or fewer days per year 
• Daily announcements support 

attendance 
• Daily drawings for positive 

behavior (have to be present to 
win) 

• Weekly Student of the Week 
awards tied to attendance 

• Classroom Incentives 
• Attendance Letters and Support 

Attendance 
Support 

Calls 
• Attendance meetings and 

check-ins 
• Weekly meetings with Truancy 

Officer Page 11



Enclosure B-1

Assessment 
SBAC 

14/5 - 15/16 

SBAC Percent of students receiving a 3 or 4 
on the statewide assessment in Math and ELA 
at grades 3-8, and 11. 

ELA 

14/15 15/16 14/15 15/16 

6th 21% 32% 31o/~ 38% 

~ 
7th 42% 28% 40% 28% 

~ 
58%~ 43%8th 40% 38% 

Page 12



Enclosure B-1

Assessment 
MAP- Math 

15/16 
Fall - Winter 

MAP - Benchmark Assessment 

F w F w 

6 Risk 48 47 27 26 25 27 

7 Risk 48 61 27 21 25 18 

8 Risk 68 67 16 15 18 18 

Page 13



Enclosure B-1

Assessment 
MAP- ELA 

15/16 
Fall - Winter 

MAP - Benchmark Assessment 

F w F w 

Reading Comprehension 

6 Risk 69 60 16 13 15 23 

7 Risk 49 45 23 23 28 32 

8 Risk 60 64 17 16 23 20 

Language Usage 

6 Risk 60 55 17 22 23 23 

7 Risk 41 39 25 32 34 29 

8 Risk 58 63 17 18 25 19 

Page 14



Enclosure B-1

${V{N <>AK 

Page 15



   

 
  
  
  

 

  
 

 

   

 

  

   
 

 

 
  

 
 

  

  
   

 

  
 

  

 

 

 

    
   
   
   

 

Enclosure C-1

Lebanon Community Schools 
Code: JFCIA 

Adopted: 
Orig. Code(s): JFCIA 

Student Drug Testing ** (Version 2) 

As part of the district’s substance abuse prevention efforts, mandatory drug testing will be required of all 
student athletes and participants in extracurricular activities, [grades 9-12], if randomly selected, in order 
to: 

1. Provide for the health and safety of student athletes and participants in extracurricular activities; 

2. Undermine the effects of peer pressure; and 

3. Encourage participation in treatment programs, at parent expense, for student athletes and 
participants with substance abuse problems. 

Extracurricular activities are defined as district-sponsored athletics [and other interscholastic activities 
which are sanctioned by the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) (e.g., dance, drill, music 
solo/band/choir/orchestra, cheerleader and speech)] [and other district-sponsored competitive activities]. 

No participant shall be penalized academically for testing positive for illegal [and performance-enhancing] 
drugs. Test results will not be documented in any student’s education records.  Information regarding the 
results of drug tests will not be disclosed to criminal or juvenile authorities absent a valid and binding 
subpoena or other legal process, which the district shall not solicit.  In the event of a subpoena or other 
legal process, the district will notify the student’s parents [at least 72 hours] prior to releasing information. 

Student athletes and participants may be tested prior to participation in extracurricular activities.  Random 
testing will be conducted periodically thereafter by a method determined by the district to assure the 
integrity, confidentiality and random nature of the selection process. 

[No district employee shall knowingly sell, market or distribute steroid or performance enhancing 
substances to kindergarten through 12 students with whom the employee has contact as part of the 
employee’s district duties; or knowingly endorse or suggest the use of such drugs.] 

The superintendent will develop administrative regulations to implement the drug-testing program in 
accordance with the provisions of law. 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 329.095 
ORS 332.107 
ORS 336.222 
ORS 336.227 

ORS 339.250 
ORS 342.721 
ORS 342.726 
ORS Chapter 475 

OAR 581-021-0050 to -0075 
OAR 581-022-0413 
OAR 581-022-0416 

Vernonia Sch. Dist. 47J v. Acton, 515 U.S. 646 (1995). 

Student Drug Testing ** - JFCIA 

Page 16

1-2 

http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-329
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-339
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-021
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-332
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-342
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=oar-581-022
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-336
http://policy.osba.org/orsredir.asp?ors=ors-475


 

   

  
 

Enclosure C-1

Bd. of Educ. of Indep. Sch. Dist. No. 92 of Pottawatomie County v. Earls, 536 U.S. 822 (2002). 
Weber v. Oakridge Sch. Dist. 76, 184 Or. App. 415 (2002). 

Open Enrollment/School Attendance Areas - JEC-AR (1) 

Page 17

2-2 



 

   

 
   
   
   
 
 
  
 

 
 

  
  

 

 
   

 
 

 
 

  
  

 

 
  

 
 

   
  

 
 

  
 
 

  
 

 
 

  
   

  
    

 
 

 

Enclosure C-1

Lebanon Community Schools 
Code: JFCIA-AR 

Adopted: 
Orig. Code(s): JFCIA-AR 

Student Drug Testing ** (Version 2) 

Definitions 

1. “Illegal drug” is any drug which an individual may not sell, possess, use, distribute or purchase under 
state law, or as defined in schedules I through V of the Controlled Substances Act (21 U.S.C. § 812) 
including, but not limited to, marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines and phencyclidine (PCP). 
As used in this policy, “illegal drug” also means possession, use, sale or supply of prescription and 
nonprescription medication - in violation of Board policy JHCD – Nonprescription Medication and 
JFCDA – Prescription Medication and accompanying administrative regulation. “Illegal drug” shall 
also include alcohol. 

2. “Performance-enhancing drug” includes anabolic steroids and any other natural or synthetic 
substance used to increase muscle mass, strength, endurance, speed or other athletic ability. The term 
“performance-enhancing drug” does not include dietary or nutritional supplements such as vitamins, 
minerals and proteins which can be lawfully purchased in over-the-counter transactions. 

3. “Prescription medication” means any noninjectable drug, chemical compound, suspension or 
preparation in suitable form for use as a curative or remedial substance taken either internally or 
externally by a student under the written direction of a physician. Prescription medication does not 
include dietary food supplements. 

4. “Nonprescription medication” means only commercially prepared, non-alcohol-based medication to 
be taken at school that is necessary for the student to remain in school. This shall be limited to eyes, 
nose and cough drops, cough suppressants, analgesics, decongestants, antihistamines, topical 
antibiotics, anti-inflammatories and antacids that do not require written or oral instructions from 
physician. Nonprescription medication does not include dietary food supplements. 

Consent 

Each student wishing to participate in athletics and/or extracurricular activities sanctioned by the OSAA 
and the student’s parent(s) shall consent in writing to drug testing. Written consent shall be in the form 
attached to this administrative regulation. No student shall be allowed to participate in athletics and/or 
extracurricular activities sanctioned by the OSAA without such consent. 

Selection 

All student athletes and extracurricular activity participants in OSAA sanctioned events may be tested 
during the athletic season or extracurricular activity in which they participate. In addition, selection for 
random testing will be by lottery from a pool of all students participating in athletic and/or extracurricular 
activity programs in the district at the time of the drawing. 

The superintendent or designee shall take reasonable steps to assure the integrity, confidentiality and 
random nature of the selection process including, but not limited to, assuring that: 

                 Student Drug Testing ** - JFCIA-AR 

Page 18

1-6 



 

   

    
 

   
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

   
 

   
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

  
   

  
 

 
 

  
 

Enclosure C-1

1. The names of all participating students are in the pool; 

2. The person drawing names has no way of knowingly choosing or failing to choose particular students 
for testing; 

3. The identity of students drawn for testing is not known to those involved in the selection process; 

4. The selection process is observed by at least two adults. 

Testing 

Testing will be conducted by a laboratory selected by the district. Chain of custody procedures, as 
recommended by the laboratory, will be followed. 

Samples will be collected at a mutually convenient time on the same day the student is selected for testing 
or, if the student is absent on that day, on the day of the student’s return to school. If a student is unable to 
produce a sample at any particular time, the student will be allowed to return later that same day to provide 
the sample. All students selected for testing will be given the option of providing samples in private. 
Students who refuse to provide a sample will be considered to have tested positive and will be subject to 
the procedures listed below. 

The testing laboratory will test for one or more illegal or performance-enhancing drugs. The 
superintendent shall decide prior to selection of students which illegal or performance-enhancing drugs 
shall be screened. Samples will not be screened for the presence of any substance other than an illegal or 
performance enhancing drug or for the existence of any physical condition other than drug intoxication.   

Samples will be split at the time of testing. The duplicate samples will be sealed and maintained by the 
laboratory in the event a second test is requested.  

The testing laboratory will report results only to the superintendent or his/her designee. 

Positive Test Results 

If the student’s test results indicate the presence of illegal or performance-enhancing drugs, the following 
will occur: 

1. The student or parent may request within 72 hours of a positive test notification that the second 
specimen sample be tested. The student may voluntarily disclose use of prescription medication 
which may have affected the outcome of the test; 

2. If the second sample tests negative, the student and parent will be notified and no further action will 
be taken. If the second sample tests positive, notification will be made and a meeting will be 
scheduled with the student, the parent(s) and the administration. 

Discipline 

Due process procedures will be followed for all discipline arising from violation of the district’s policy. 

Open Enrollment/School Attendance Areas - JEC-AR (1) 

Page 19

2-6 



 

   

 
 

  
 

   
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

   

 
  

 
  

 
   

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
  

   

 

Enclosure C-1

First Positive Result 

1. Notify student and parent(s); 

2. Meeting scheduled by the administration, with the parent(s) and student; 

3. The student will be suspended from participation in athletics and other interscholastic activities 
which are sanctioned by the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) for the 14 consecutive 
calendar days starting with the day of suspension and suspension from extracurricular activities for 
the remainder of the suspension. 

4. During the suspension the student will not participate in any activities and/or school sponsored 
events. (which also include dances and non-academic field trips). 

5. Student will be assigned to school Drug Education and Diversion program and complete steps 
required. 

Second Positive Result (in high school career) 

1. Notify student and parent(s); 

2. Meeting scheduled by the administration, with the parent(s) and student; 

3. The student will be suspended from participation in athletics and other interscholastic activities 
which are sanctioned by the Oregon School Activities Association (OSAA) for the 45 consecutive 
calendar days starting with the day of suspension and suspension from extracurricular activities for 
the remainder of the suspension. 

4. During the suspension the student will not participate in any activities and/or school sponsored 
events (which also include dances and non-academic field trips). 

5. Student will be assigned to school Drug Education and Diversion program and complete steps 
required. If student has not met requirements by the end of 45 day suspension; they may rejoin 
team but must complete requirements.  They will bring weekly progress updates to coach, at any 
point they fail to meet requirements after reinstatement; they will be suspended pending 
completion. 

Third Positive Result (in high school career) 

1. Notify student and parent(s); 

2. Meeting scheduled by the administration, with the parent(s) and student; 

3. The student will be suspended from participating in athletics and other interscholastic activities 
which are sanctioned by the OSAA for the remainder of their high school years at Lebanon High 
School. 

                 Student Drug Testing ** - JFCIA-AR 

Page 20

3-6 



 

   

 
 

 

 
 

 
  

   
  

   
 

  
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

Enclosure C-1

4. During the suspension the student will not participate in any activities and/or school sponsored 
events. (which also include dances and non-academic field trips). 

5. Students will be referred to school’s Drug Education and Diversion program. 

Appeal Process 

A student who has been determined to be in violation of the district’s drug testing policy shall have the 
right to appeal the decision to the superintendent or his/her designee. The appeal must be submitted to the 
superintendent, in writing, within five calendar days following the meeting with the principal. The student 
will remain ineligible to participate in athletics and/or extracurricular activities pending the appeal. 

The superintendent or his/her designee will determine whether the original finding was justified. 

If dissatisfied with the superintendent’s decision, the student may appeal to the Board by providing notice 
within five calendar days of the superintendent’s decision. 

Relationship to Student Discipline Policies 

Normal disciplinary measures which may affect eligibility are still applicable for violations which do not 
arise from these testing procedures. 

One Time Only – Voluntary Student Admission 

If prior to being randomly selected for testing, a student voluntarily admits that they have an issue with 
drug use and will test positive; that student, together with a parent/legal guardian will then sign the 
voluntary student admission form and agree to enter into the school district diversion education program.  
If the student, along with the parent/legal guardian are meeting the expectations of the program the student 
may participate in competition with out consequence.  At any time if the student or parent/legal guardian 
fail to meet the expectations of the program, the student becomes ineligible and assumes the appropriate 
code of conduct consequence. 

Open Enrollment/School Attendance Areas - JEC-AR (1) 

Page 21

4-6 



 

   

 
 

 
 

 
   

 
 
  

 
   

 
   

 
 
 

  
        

 
  

          
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Enclosure C-1

STUDENT DRUG-TESTING AUTHORIZATION FORM 

I understand that my performance as an athlete and/or participant in extracurricular activities and the 
reputation of my school are dependent, in part, on my conduct as an individual. I hereby agree to accept 
and abide by the Board policies, administrative regulations and rules of the Lebanon Community School 
District. 

I also authorize Lebanon Community School District to conduct a test for drug use on a urine specimen 
which I provide. I also authorize the release of information concerning the results of such a test to the 
district and to my parent(s). 

This shall be deemed a consent pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act for the release 
of the above information to the parties named above. 

I have received a copy of this release. I have read and understand the district policy and administrative 
regulation. 

___________________________________________ __________________ 
Student Signature Date Date 

___________________________________________ __________________ 
Parent Signature Date Date 

                 Student Drug Testing ** - JFCIA-AR 

Page 22

5-6 



 

   

 
 

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

 

   

 
 

  
  

  
  

 

Enclosure C-1

Athletic & Activity Code and Random Athletic Drug Testing Program 
Opt Out Form 

Student’s printed name: _______________________________________________________   

In accordance with the Lebanon High School, Athletic & Activity Code and Random Athletic Drug 
Testing Program consent form signed by me and my parent on ___________, (copy attached) I hereby 
choose to exercise my right to opt out of drug testing, for the __________ season. 

I understand the consequences of opting out and agree to complete the diversion program as outlined in the 
policy detailed below.  

Student Signature _______________________________________________Date____________ 
Parent Signature _______________________________________________Date____________ 

ONE TIME ONLY - Voluntary Student Admission 

If a student voluntarily admits at the beginning of the sport season that he/she will test positive, that 
student, with his/her parent/guardian, will then sign a voluntary student admission statement declaring the 
student positive for a controlled substance and subjecting the student to follow up testing at his/her own 
expense every 4 weeks for two (2) successive tests from the day the student declared him/herself positive. 
The student will also be required to complete the Diversion Plan.  However, as soon as the plan is 
established they will be allowed to return to competition.  This option is only available to a student one 
time throughout their entire high school career at Lebanon High School. 

Open Enrollment/School Attendance Areas - JEC-AR (1) 

Page 23

6-6 



  

 

 

  

   

  

  

   

 

 

 

Renaissance
Place 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 1 Customizable Progress Report 
Printed Thursday, February 23, 2017 9:53:21 AM 

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 Last Consolidated Date: February 22, 2017 9:04 PM 

Report Options
Reporting Parameter Group: All Demographics [Default] 
Reporting Level: District 
Group By: District 
Data Reported As: Mean (Average) 

Lebanon Community School District 9 

School 

STAR Reading™ 
1st Qtr 

PR 
2nd QTR 

PR Change 

Cascades Elementary School 34 36 +2 

Green Acres Elementary School 

HAMILTON CREEK 

LACOMB 

Pioneer School 

28 36 +8 

36 40 +4 

41 46 +5 

40 41 +1 

Riverview School 34 45 +11 

Mean 35 40 +5 

Page 24



  

 

 

  

   

  

  

   

 

 

 

Renaissance
Place 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 1 Customizable Progress Report 
Printed Thursday, February 23, 2017 9:49:48 AM 

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 Last Consolidated Date: February 22, 2017 9:04 PM 

Report Options
Reporting Parameter Group: All Demographics [Default] 
Reporting Level: District 
Group By: District 
Data Reported As: Mean (Average) 

Lebanon Community School District 9 

School 

STAR Math™ 
1st Qtr 

PR 
2nd QTR 

PR Change 

Cascades Elementary School 44 46 +2 

Green Acres Elementary School 44 48 +4 

HAMILTON CREEK 50 52 +2 

LACOMB 52 55 +3 

Pioneer School 56 59 +3 

Riverview School 43 47 +4 

Mean 48 51 +3 

Page 25



 

 

    

   

  

   

 

 

 

   

 

    

   

   

 

  

 

 

  

                   

Renaissance
Place 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 1 Assessment Proficiency Report 
Printed Sunday, February 26, 2017 4:41:21 PM

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 Last Consolidated Date: February 25, 2017 9:05 PM 
Reporting Period: 10/28/16-01/25/17 (2nd QTR) 

Report Options
Reporting Parameter Group: All Demographics [Default] 
Reporting Level: District 
Group By: District 
Assessment Product: STAR Reading™ 

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 

Table 1: Data for schools that tested during the reporting period 

Participation Proficiency 

Number Not Tested Tested At/Above 40 Below 40 

School 
of 

Students Total % Total % Total % 
Mean 
PR Total % 

Mean 
PR 

Cascades Elementary School 344 1 0 295 100 151 51 72 144 49 9 

Green Acres Elementary School 

HAMILTON CREEK 

LACOMB 

Pioneer School 

317 

282 

238 

364 

63 25 

113 45 

99 46 

56 19 

194 75 

137 55 

116 54 

244 81 

90 46 68 104 54 14 

71 52 72 66 48 13 

72 62 70 44 38 14 

137 56 72 107 44 11 

Riverview School 401 57 17 284 83 165 58 75 119 42 11 

Summary 1946 389 23 1270 77 686 54 72 584 46 11 

Table 2: Data for all students of this district by demographic group 

Number 
of 

Students 

Participation Proficiency 

Not Tested Tested At/Above 40 Below 40 

Total % Total % 
Mean 

Total % PR 
Mean 

Total % PR 

Gender 

Female 

Male 

Unspecified Gender 

Ethnicity 

American Indian or Alaskan Native 

Asian or Pacific Islander 

Black 

Hispanic 

Other or Unspecified Ethnicity 

White 

Other Characteristics 

Free Lunch Program 

Learning Disabled 

Migrant 

Physically Disabled 

Reduced Lunch Program 

959 

982 

5 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1946 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

189 24 

196 23 

4 80 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

551 30 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

609 76 

660 77 

1 20 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

1270 70 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

351 58 73 

334 51 71 

1 100 86 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

686 54 72 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

258 42 13 

326 49 10 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

584 46 11 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

PR (Percentile Rank): Percentage of students in the same grade nationally who scored the same or lower on a non-equal interval scale. 

Page 26



 

 

 

    

   

  

   

 

 

 

   

 

    

   

   

 

  

 

 

  

                   

Renaissance
Place 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 1 Assessment Proficiency Report 
Printed Thursday, February 23, 2017 9:44:51 AM

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 Last Consolidated Date: February 22, 2017 9:04 PM 
Reporting Period: 10/28/16-01/25/17 (2nd QTR) 

Report Options
Reporting Parameter Group: All Demographics [Default] 
Reporting Level: District 
Group By: District 
Assessment Product: STAR Math™ 

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 

Table 1: Data for schools that tested during the reporting period 

Participation Proficiency 

Number Not Tested Tested At/Above 40 Below 40 

School 
of 

Students Total % Total % Total % 
Mean 
PR Total % 

Mean 
PR 

Cascades Elementary School 344 3 1 294 99 171 58 74 123 42 13 

Green Acres Elementary School 

HAMILTON CREEK 

LACOMB 

Pioneer School 

317 

281 

238 

363 

16 6 

107 43 

93 43 

15 5 

241 94 

143 57 

122 57 

284 95 

143 59 72 98 41 16 

97 68 73 46 32 12 

87 71 73 35 29 15 

198 70 79 86 30 13 

Riverview School 401 5 1 336 99 198 59 75 138 41 13 

Summary 1944 239 14 1420 86 894 63 75 526 37 14 

Table 2: Data for all students of this district by demographic group 

Number 
of 

Students 

Participation Proficiency 

Not Tested Tested At/Above 40 Below 40 

Total % Total % 
Mean 

Total % PR 
Mean 

Total % PR 

Gender 

Female 

Male 

Unspecified Gender 

Ethnicity 

American Indian or Alaskan Native 

Asian or Pacific Islander 

Black 

Hispanic 

Other or Unspecified Ethnicity 

White 

Other Characteristics 

Free Lunch Program 

Learning Disabled 

Migrant 

Physically Disabled 

Reduced Lunch Program 

957 

982 

5 

0 

0 

0 

0 

1944 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

123 15 

112 13 

4 80 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

400 22 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

675 85 

744 87 

1 20 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

1420 78 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

416 62 75 

477 64 75 

1 100 98 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

894 63 75 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

259 38 14 

267 36 13 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

526 37 14 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

PR (Percentile Rank): Percentage of students in the same grade nationally who scored the same or lower on a non-equal interval scale. 

Page 27



 

  

 

  

 

                  

  
 

 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 3 Instructional Planning Report
for 

Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:13:20 AM 

School: Teacher: 
Class: Grade: 

Report Options 
Use Trend Score: Use trend score for student's suggested skills 

STAR Early Literacy Test Results 
Current SS (Scaled Score): 593 Test Date: 01/17/2017 

Literacy Classification: Late Emergent Reader 

Projected SS for 06/08/17: 707 Based on research, 50% of students at this student's level will achieve this much growth.

 Current Performance 

Most Recent Test 

Most Recent 
Test 

School Benchmark 

500 550 600 650 700 750 800 850 

Projected 

Projected 

Scaled Score 

û Urgent Intervention û Intervention û On Watch û At/Above Benchmark 

Suggested Skills
 STAR Early Literacy scaled score(s) suggest these skills from Core Progress™ learning progressions would be 
challenging, but not too difficult for her. Combine this information with your own knowledge of the student and use your 
professional judgment when designing an instructional program. Use the Core Progress learning progressions to see how 
these skills fit within the larger context of the progression. 

Reading: Foundational Skills 

Print Concepts 
GR 

This score suggests Josie should practice the following skills to improve understanding of print concepts. 

»K Name, rapidly and automatically, the letters of the alphabet 

K Name all the letters of the alphabet and recognize their lower- and uppercase forms (e.g., pick another way to write 
the letter G from q, g, j) 

K Recognize the sounds of letters in lower- and uppercase form 

K Know the order of the alphabet (e.g., identify letters that come before or after another letter; sing the alphabet song) 

»1 Locate the capital letter that begins a sentence, and the period, question mark, or exclamation point that ends it 

»1 Distinguish kinds of sentences based on their end punctuation 

»1 Identify the dialogue that quotation marks indicate 

Phonological Awareness 

This score suggests Josie should practice the following phonological awareness skills, particularly those dealing with 
individual phonemes. 

»K Isolate, say, and distinguish initial or final phonemes in spoken CVC words (e.g., say the initial sound in hat, the final 
sound in cup) 

K Recognize, identify, and produce groups of words that begin with the same initial sound (i.e., alliterative words) 

K Isolate, say, match, and distinguish medial short vowel sounds in spoken CVC words (e.g., say the middle vowel 
sound in bed) 

»K Isolate and distinguish short vowel sounds in single-syllable words in spoken language (e.g., from a verbal prompt, 
identify that hat has a different middle vowel sound than hit) 

»Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 28



 

  

 
        

 

 

 
 

  

 

 
  

 
  

 
  

   

 
 

 
  

  
 

 
   

  
  

 

 
 

 

 

 
  

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

2 of 3 Instructional Planning Report
for 

Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:13:20 AM 

School: Teacher: 
Class: Grade: 

GR 

K 

K 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

Reading: Foundational Skills 

Phonological Awareness 

Identify, match, and distinquish consonant blends 

» Add or substitute initial or final phonemes in order to produce new one-syllable words in spoken language (e.g., 
change the /k/ in cat to /h/ to make hat; change the /g/ in bug to /s/ to make bus) 

» Blend phonemes, including consonant blends, to pronounce single-syllable words (e.g., from a verbal prompt, 
identify the word from blended sounds sl-e-d) 

» Segment single-syllable spoken words into their component phonemes, including consonant blends, in sequence 
(e.g., the initial, middle, and final sounds of glad are /g/ /l/ /a/ /d/) 

Pronounce single-syllable words by blending and segmenting consonant blends and other phonemes (e.g., /t/ /r/ /i/ 
/p/ makes the word trip) 

» Isolate and then pronounce the initial, medial, or final sound in single-syllable words including those with long 
vowels and consonant blends (e.g., what is the middle sound in goat?) 

Phonics and Word Recognition 

This score suggests Josie should practice the following phonics and word-recognition skills, particularly those skills 
dealing with identifying and substituting consonant blends and long vowels in words. 

» Isolate, identify, and distinguish initial consonant blends to decode regularly spelled words (e.g., pick the word that 
starts with /bl/ from choices block, brew, book) 

» Recognize and identify the spelling-sound correspondences for common consonant digraphs in words (e.g., pick the 
word that has /sh/ from choices saw, wash, have) 

» Substitute final consonants or consonant blends to create new words 

» Use sound-symbol correspondence to identify rimes 

» Decode regularly spelled single-syllable grade-level words by identifying short vowel sounds (e.g., read the words 
cup, nap, and man; cup has the same middle vowel sound as run) 

» Decode regularly spelled grade-appropriate words (e.g., pick the word last from last, list, lost) 

» Identify common spellings of medial long vowel CVCe phonemes in spoken words (e.g., plane has the same middle 
vowel sound as make) 

» Decode words by identifying the correctly spelled CVCe pattern in a word from a spoken sentence (e.g., read the 
words drive, drove, and dove and recognize that drove is the correct spelling of the word) 

Distinguish common spellings of long vowel phonemes in spoken words (e.g., phone has a different middle vowel 
sound than like) 

» Identify long vowel sounds using common vowel team spellings in order to decode single-syllable words (e.g., pick 
the word with the same middle vowel sound as meat from feel, bed, and let) 

Decode single-syllable words by recognizing common ways to spell long vowel sounds (e.g., seeing the words heat, 
let, and end, and recognizing that only heat has the long vowel sound) 

Fluency 

This score suggests Josie should work on the following to increase fluency and comprehension of texts at Josie's 
reading level. 

» Identify with guidance the purpose for reading (e.g., for enjoyment, to learn something new), and show 
comprehension of on-level texts by answering questions after reading that reflect on the purpose (e.g., what parts of 
the story did you like or what did you learn?) 

» Read on-level texts aloud at the estimated oral reading fluency (ORF) to meet grade-level benchmarks 

» Read on-level texts aloud with appropriate expression (e.g., moving from word-by-word reading to fewer pauses 
between words and pausing between sentences) 

» With assistance, confirm or correct understanding of a word in context through the use of illustrations, phonics (e.g., 
sounding out words, especially initial and final letters), and by applying repair strategies (e.g., slowing reading pace 
and/or asking questions) 

»Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 29



 

  

 

  
 

 

 

  

   

 

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

3 of 3 Instructional Planning Report
for 

Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:13:20 AM 

School: Teacher: 
Class: Grade: 

Language 

Vocabulary Acquisition and Use 
GR 

This score suggests Josie should practice the following skills related to vocabulary acquisition and use. 

»1 Use knowledge of frequently occurring affixes (e.g., un-, re-), base words, and their inflectional forms (e.g., look + 
-ing) as clues to the meanings of words (e.g., unhappy, looking) 

»1 Use sentence-level context clues, illustrations, and foundational skills to determine or clarify the meanings of 
unfamiliar words in grade-appropriate texts 

»1 Name antonyms for grade-appropriate frequently used words (e.g., before/after) in isolation or in context 

1 Name and use synonyms for grade-appropriate high-frequency words (e.g., Dolch: road/street; Fry: look/see) 

1 Group or define words by categories and attributes (e.g., use superordinate/subordinate relationships, ducks and 
swans are birds that swim; robins and crows are birds that don't swim) 

1 Apply new vocabulary to real-life objects or places (e.g., use newly learned words such as cozy to tell about a place 
you like to sit) 

»1 Use vocabulary acquired from listening, conversing, reading, and responding to text including high-frequency 
conjunctions to indicate simple relationships (e.g., because to show causal relationships; but to show contrast) 

»Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 30



  

 

 

  

   

  

  

   

 

 

 

Renaissance
Place 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 1 Customizable Progress Report 
Printed Thursday, February 23, 2017 9:52:26 AM 

District: Lebanon Community School District 9 Last Consolidated Date: February 22, 2017 9:04 PM 

Report Options
Reporting Parameter Group: All Demographics [Default] 
Reporting Level: District 
Group By: District 
Data Reported As: Mean (Average) 

Lebanon Community School District 9 

School 

STAR Early Literacy™ 
1st Qtr 2nd QTR 

SS SS Change 

Cascades Elementary School 588 651 +63 

Green Acres Elementary School 

HAMILTON CREEK 

LACOMB 

Pioneer School 

542 625 +83 

581 677 +96 

586 645 +59 

540 650 +110 

Riverview School 622 702 +80 

Mean 580 662 +82 

Page 31



 

 

   
     

   
  

  

 

  

  
 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

  

                        
                      

             

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

I I I I I 

Enclosure C-2

1 of 4 Class Instructional Planning Report 
Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:00:41 AM 

School: Reporting Period: 1/11/2017 - 2/9/2017 

Class: Teacher: 

Instructional Number of Scaled Score 
Groups Students Median Range 

Group 1 5 538 518 - 559

Group 2 5 691 659 - 773 

Suggested Skills 
Skill recommendations are based on the median score for each Instructional Group. These skills are a starting point for 
instructional planning. Combine this information with your own knowledge of the student and use your professional 
judgment when designing an instructional program. Use Core Progress™ learning progression for reading to find additional 
information for each skill, teacher activities, and sample items. 

Group 1 

Students 

GR 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

Reading: Foundational Skills 

Print Concepts 

» Distinguish letters from words (e.g., identify which is a word, not a letter, from choices c, t, cat; identify which is a 
letter, not a word from choices: this, b, fox) 

Understand that sounds paired with letters represent spoken speech in print (e.g., students find the letter that starts 
their name in environmental print and identify the sound it makes) 

» Distinguish letters from numbers (e.g., select J from choices J, 8, 7) 

» Compare the lengths of different words based on how many letters they contain (e.g., explain that sit is longer than it 
because sit has more letters) 

Clap and count the number of words in a given sentence 

» Distinguish between the shapes of upper- and lowercase letters (e.g., pick the letter that is different in S, S, C; pick 
the letter that is different in E, f, f) 

» Distinguish between similarly spelled words that have different letters (e.g., pick the word that is different from the 
others in: an, as, an) 

» Identify the letters of the alphabet (e.g., pick the letter a from s, a, o) 

» Name, rapidly and automatically, the letters of the alphabet 

Phonological Awareness 

» Blend, count, and segment syllables in spoken words (e.g., from an oral prompt, students identify that tar-get makes 
the word target) 

» Count syllables in multisyllable words (e.g., pick how many syllables are in ba-by) 

» Identify and blend onsets and rimes in single-syllable words (e.g., pick the picture of a shoe from the audio prompt: 
/sh/ /oo/) 

Segment onsets and rimes in single-syllable words 

» Blend phonemes orally to produce words (e.g., blend the sounds b-u-g and choose the word's picture from a bat, a 
bug, and a bell) and segment and count the sounds in a word 

» Recognize and produce rhyming sounds in words (e.g., pick the picture that has the /at/ sound from pictures of a cat, 
can, and cup) 

The median test score for each instructional group is calculated based only on students who have a test score up to 30 days before the 
selected testing end date. As a result, suggested skills may be different when viewed through the Record Book, which calculates the median 
test score for each instructional group based on the last test taken during the school year. 

» Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 32



 

 
 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

2 of 4 Class Instructional Planning Report 
Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:00:41 AM 

Reporting Period: 1/11/2017 - 2/9/2017 School: 

Class: 

Teacher: . 

Group 1 

Reading: Foundational Skills 

Phonological Awareness 
GR 

» Isolate and say long vowel sounds in single-syllable words in spoken language K 

Phonics and Word Recognition 

» Identify the primary sounds most frequently represented by initial consonants of written words (e.g., pick the word that 
begins with the sound /g/, get; pick the first letter you hear in mop, m) 

K 

» Identify and match letters for final consonant sounds in single-syllable words (e.g., pick the letter for the last sound in 
fan by reading from choices: f, v, and n) 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

Decode single-syllable (CVC) words (e.g., cat, get, mom) 

» Identify, match, and distinguish the short vowel sounds with the letters that represent them 

» Decode regularly spelled single-syllable words by distinguishing between short vowel sounds 

» Identify the letters that most commonly represent long vowel sounds (e.g., a_e, i_e, o_e, u_e) 

» Distinguish between similarly spelled words by identifying the sounds of the consonants that differ (e.g., pick the word 
that has the /k/ sound: cat, pat, pat) 

» Distinguish between similarly spelled words by identifying the sounds of the vowels that differ (e.g., pick the word that 
has the /a/ sound: cat, cot, cut) 

» Read grade-appropriate high-frequency (e.g., Dolch, Fry) words by sight 

With prompting and support, identify the meanings of familiar base words with common inflectional forms (e.g., -ed, 
-ing, -s, -es) 

Fluency 

» With assistance, confirm or correct understanding of text by using illustrations 

Language 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

K 

Vocabulary Acquisition and Use 

» Use frequently occurring inflections (e.g., -ing, -ed, -s) and affixes with prompting and support to predict the meanings 
of unfamiliar words (e.g., use the inflectional ending to determine that birds means more than one bird) 

Apply foundational skills to recognize vocabulary in context (e.g., use context clues such as illustrations, sounding 
out) 

Apply new vocabulary to familiar real-life objects or places (e.g., note flowers that are colorful) 

» Use vocabulary acquired from listening, conversing, reading, and responding to text 

Name antonyms of frequently used verbs (e.g., go, stop) or adjectives (e.g., loud, soft) 

Identify new meanings for familiar multiple-meaning words such as nouns that can also be verbs (e.g., duck, bark) 

» Explain or act out the differences in the meanings of words that can describe the same general action (e.g., go, walk, 
march, strut, prance) 

» Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 33



 

 

 
 

  

 
 

  
 

 
    

 

 

 

  
 

  
  

 

  
   

    
 

   

    
 

 

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

3 of 4 Class Instructional Planning Report 
Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:00:41 AM 

Reporting Period: 1/11/2017 - 2/9/2017 School: 

Class: 
Teacher: 

Group 2 

Students 

GR 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

Reading: Foundational Skills 

Phonological Awareness 

» Segment single-syllable spoken words into their component phonemes, including consonant blends, in sequence 
(e.g., the initial, middle, and final sounds of glad are /g/ /l/ /a/ /d/) 

Pronounce single-syllable words by blending and segmenting consonant blends and other phonemes (e.g., /t/ /r/ /i/ /p/ 
makes the word trip) 

» Isolate and then pronounce the initial, medial, or final sound in single-syllable words including those with long vowels 
and consonant blends (e.g., what is the middle sound in goat?) 

» Isolate and distinguish medial long vowel phonemes in spoken words (e.g., from a verbal prompt, identify that drive 
has a different middle vowel sound than drove) 

Distinguish long vowel sounds from short vowel sounds in spoken single-syllable words (e.g., pick the picture that has 
the long /a/ from picture of a mat, cane, and can) 

» Add or substitute initial, final, or medial vowel phonemes in order to produce new words in spoken language (e.g., 
change /a/ in pan to /e/ to make pen; change /a/ in race to /i/ to make rice) 

Phonics and Word Recognition 

» Decode grade-appropriate two-syllable compounds (e.g., bedtime) 

» Identify the meanings of familiar base words with common inflectional forms (e.g., -ed, -ing, -s, -es) to read 
grade-appropriate words 

» Read grade-level sight words automatically (e.g., again, could, every) 

» Recognize silent letters that represent consonants 

» Recognize silent letters that represent vowels 

Recognize associated spelling patterns of final consonant blends (e.g., pick the letters that make the last sound in the 
word desk) 

» Distinguish short vowel sounds from long vowel sounds to read single-syllable words (e.g., reading the words egg, 
we, and key, students identify egg as having the short vowel sound) 

» Identify spelling patterns for vowel teams with multiple pronunciations and decode associated words (e.g., read, 
bread; out, youth; pie, piece) 

» Decode words with long vowel digraphs (e.g., pick the word need: nede, nead, need) and isolate the spelling pattern 
used (e.g., pick the vowel team that spells the long a sound in tail: ae, ai, au) 

» Decode grade-appropriate words with diphthongs (e.g., read the words prize, poor, and point and recognize that point 
has the /oi/ sound) 

» Decode words with diphthongs and isolate the spelling patterns used (e.g., read the words brown, broun, and brawn, 
and understand that brown is the correct spelling) 

» Identify spelling patterns for variant vowel teams and decode words (e.g., pick the word with the /ü/ sound [as /oo/ in 
smooth] from choices luck, food, rope) 

Identify r-controlled vowel sounds and decode words containing them by identifying associated spelling patterns 

» Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 34



 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

               

• 
STAR" 
Early Li teracy 

Enclosure C-2

4 of 4 Class Instructional Planning Report 
Printed Friday, February 10, 2017 11:00:41 AM 

School: Pioneer School Reporting Period: 1/11/2017 - 2/9/2017 

Class: 

Teacher: 

Group 2 
Reading: Foundational Skills 

GR 

2 

2 

2 

2 

Fluency 

» Identify purpose for reading (e.g., for enjoyment, to answer a question) and comprehend on-level texts demonstrated 
by rereading favorite parts to self or other audience or by answering pre-reading questions 

» Read on-level texts aloud at the estimated oral reading fluency (ORF) to meet grade-level benchmarks 

» Read on-level texts aloud with increasing smoothness and appropriate expression (e.g., using different voices for 
different characters) 

» Confirm or correct understanding of a word in context through the use of various text features, (e.g., illustrations, bold 
print) phonics (e.g., sounding out words, especially initial and final letters), and by applying repair strategies (e.g., 
slowing reading pace and/or rereading aloud) 

Language 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

2 

Vocabulary Acquisition and Use 

Name antonyms for grade-appropriate words (e.g., many/few) 

Sort or identify words by their different functions (e.g., noun/thing; verb/action) and identify their functions in context 

Apply new vocabulary to describe real-life objects or subjects (e.g., use words such as juicy to describe an orange) 

» Use vocabulary acquired from listening, conversing, reading, and responding to text including descriptive adjectives 
and adverbs (e.g., beautiful, quickly, slowly) 

Use sentence-level context clues (e.g., word placement) to determine or clarify the meanings of unfamiliar words 

Use knowledge of familiar known words to predict the meanings of compound words (e.g., paintbrush, backyard) 

» Use knowledge of simple affixes (e.g., un-, re-, over-, -er, -est) and familiar base words to decode and predict the 
meanings of new words 

» Use knowledge of grade-appropriate roots to decode and predict the meanings of unfamiliar words (e.g., dinner, dine, 
diner) 

» Use the correct homophones (e.g., know/no, hear/here) and homographs/multiple-meaning words (e.g., point, safe) 
and determine their meanings in grade-appropriate texts using sentence context or prior knowledge of spellings 

Distinguish the differences in shades of meaning among closely related grade-appropriate verbs and adjectives (e.g., 
toss, throw, hurl) 

» Designates a focus skill. Focus skills identify the most critical skills to learn at each grade level. 

Page 35



       
   

 
    

  

Enclosure C-3

An Annual Report to the Legislature on 
English Language Learners 

2014-2015 
Oregon Department of Education 

Revised 8/4/2016 

Page 36



  

 

         
     

 

              
             

              
               

             
                 

            

         

 
 
 
 
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

 

  
 

  

       

....J ....J 

....J ....J 
WW 2.5 
0 -.c 
(/) :t= 
Q) 3 
L.. (/) 

~ t3 (/) 2.0 
"C ·- Q) 
C .=; ::::, 
Q) .!Q C a.o Q) 

x.._a:;15 
Wo"" . 
....J ,._ LL 

....J (/) 
w Q) - ::::, g ~ 1.0 
:;::::i Q) & 0::: 

0.5 

0.0 1111111111111 

Statewide 
Ratio of 

Expenditures 
to Revenues 

is 0.86 

Enclosure C-3

Section 1: State School Fund Formula Revenues and General Fund 
Expenditures for English Language Learners 

Graph 1 shows the relationship between ELL revenues allocated to districts via the State 
School Fund Formula and the total ELL expenditures from the General Fund in districts 
accounting financial reports. Graph 1 shows the ratio of these expenditures to revenues by 
district. Statewide, the ratio of expenditures to revenues is 0.86, meaning that 86% of the 
funds allocated to districts via the State School Fund Formula are accounted for as being 
spent on ELLs. The ratios by district ranges from 0 to 2.90. Table 1 gives the exact values 
for revenues and expenditures for each district, based on the district financial statements. 

Graph 1: Ratio of ELL Expenditures to Revenues by District 

District Name 
ELL Formula 

Revenues 

Total ELL 
General Fund 
Expenditures 

Ratio of 
Expenditures 
to Revenues 

Lebanon Community SD 9 $177,281 $232,333 1.31 

Page 37

2 



  

         
 

             
            

           
               

              
              

              
              

             
  

 
 

          

 
 
 
 

 

 
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

  
 

 

  
 

 
 

       

 
 
 
 
 
 

of 
Responsibilty 280 

------- General Fund 
Expenditures, 

Function 1291 
Genen,lfund 
Expenditures 

95 

8% 

Enclosure C-3

Section 2: General Fund Expenditures on English Language Learners 

Expenditures from the General Fund on ELL students are accounted for using Function 
1291 and Area of Responsibility 280. Function 1291 includes expenditures for instruction 
in English Second Language Programs. Area of Responsibility 280 includes expenditures 
for Functions other than Function 1291 that are for the benefit of ELLs. For example, 
transportation expenditures to take ELLs on an educational field trip would be recorded as 
Area of Responsibility 280 under Function 2550 (Student Transportation).1 Graph 2 
shows that about 92% of the expenditures for ELLs are accounted for using Function 1291, 
while the remaining 8% are accounted for in Area of Responsibility 280. Table 2 shows 
each district’s General Fund expenditures broken down into Function 1291 and Area of 
Responsibility 280. 

Graph 2: Expenditures Divided by Function 1291 and Area of Responsibility 280 

District Name 

Function 
1291 General 

Fund 
Expenditures 

Area of 
Responsibility 
280 General 

Fund 
Expenditures 

Total ELL 
General 

Fund 
Expenditures 

Lebanon Community SD 9 $232,333 $0 $232,333 

Page 38

3 



  

       
 

                
             

             
            
             

            
               

               
           

        

 

        

 
 

         

 
 

  

 
 

  

 

 
 

  

  
  

  
 

 

 
 

  

  
 

  
  

         

40% 

Q) 35% 

~ 
0 30% 
.c !j 25% 
- ....J cw 
.gic 20% 
::::J Q) 

u5 t:: 
0 8 15% 
c 

Statewide 10% of 
Students were 
Current Ells 

Q) 10% 

~ : : 1111111111111111 I II I II I Ill I Ill lllll I I I I II I Ill lllll I Ill Ill I II I Ill 1111111111111 II 

40% 

Q) 35% 
'
Q) 

3: 30% 
0 
.c 
! ~ 25% 
_....1 cw 
.gJ '- 20% 
~~ 
(/) '-

0 ~ 15% 
c 

Statewide 8% of 
Students were 
Former Ells 

Q) 10% 

~ : : 111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

Enclosure C-3

Section 3: Number of English Language Learners 

This section summarizes the number of current and former ELLs as a count and as a 
percent of the total student population. Current ELLs were identified as students who 
qualified for English language services during the 2014-2015 school year and appeared in 
the Spring Membership Collection. Former ELLs were identified as students who qualified 
for English language services prior to the 2014-2015 school year and appeared in the 
Spring Membership collection. Graphs 3a and 3b show that about 10% students statewide 
were current ELL students and 8% were former ELL students. Table 3 gives the specific 
numbers and percentages for each district, which range from fewer than 5% to 38% for 
current ELLs and fewer than 5% to 33% for former ELLs. 

Graph 3a: Percent of Current ELLs by District 

Graph 3b: Percent of Former ELLs by District 

Table 3: Current and Former English Learners, Count and Percent 

District ID District Name 
Current 

ELL Count 

Percent of 
Students who 
were Current 

ELLs 
Former 

ELL Count 

Percent of 
Students 

who were 
Former ELLs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 83 <5% 86 <5% 

Page 39

4 



  

  

       
 

             
           

            
            

               
            

 

           

 

            

 
              

 

 

  

 

  

  
  

 

  
 

  

       

Q) >, :v ..Cl 
51:l 
0 Q) 
..c 0) 

5~ 
f.l) C 
_J ~ 
_Ji:::, -w co-~ 
c-~-l= 
Q) 0 -~ 
t: >-o 
Oro 
..... u 
O·-
-E 
C 0 
Q) C 
U O 
LU 
if w 

0 
.c u 5 ·c 
~£~ 
_J ro o 
w .52 >-
._ E .o 
~ g "O 
L Q Q) 
0 U Ol 
LL UJ 49 
,._ C 
0 W CO 
- Q) > 
~$~ u f,/) 
L 0 Q) 
[L 

100% 

90% 

80% 
70% 

60% 
50% 

40% 

30% 
20% 

10% 

0% 

100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Statewide 89% of Current 
Ells were Economically 
Disadvantaged \ 

Statewide 82% of 
Former Ells were 
Economically ~ 
Disadvantaged 

Enclosure C-3

Section 4: Economically Disadvantaged English Language Learners 

This section summarizes the percent of current and former ELLs who were economically 
disadvantaged. Graph 4a shows that statewide about 89% of current ELLs were 
economically disadvantaged, with district averages ranging from 29% to more than 95%. 
Graph 4b shows that statewide about 82% of former ELLs were economically 
disadvantaged, with district values ranging from 17% to more than 95%. Table 4 gives the 
percentages of current and former ELLs who are economically disadvantaged by district. 

Graph 4a: Percent of Current ELLs who were Economically Disadvantaged by District 

Graph 4b: Percent of Former ELLs who were Economically Disadvantaged by District 

Table 4: Percent of Economically Disadvantaged English Language Learners 

District ID District Name 

Percent Economically 
Disadvantaged Current 

ELLs 

Percent Economically 
Disadvantaged 

Former ELLs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 93% 81% 

Page 40

5 



  

 

      
 

              
                

               
              

              
             

              
        

 

         

 
 

         

 
 
 
 

       
 

  
 

  
   

   
 

   
   

 

       

 

60% 
t3 

O ·c .r. +--
5 .!Q 50% 
viO 

::J .£i' 
~~ 40% 

Statewide 12% of 
Current Ells were 
Mobile Students 

Q) Q) 
'--o 

3~ \ 
o vi 30% 
0~ ..... :.c co 
~ 2: 20% 
Q)~ 

(l_ Q) 

• 
1
: : 111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

40% 

t3 35% 
o·c 
.r. 1i5 
50 30% 
V) 
_J >, 

uJ ~ 25% 
ID C 

Statewide 8% of 
Former Ells were 
Mobile Students E _gi 20% 

0~ \ 
LL (f) 
.._ Q) 15% 
0-..... :.c Co 

1 i ,:: 11111111111111111111111111111111111 I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 5: Mobile English Language Learners 

This section summarizes the percent of current and former ELLs who were mobile. A 
mobile student is defined as a student who attended more than one school between July 1 
and May 1, entered the Oregon public education system after October 1, exited the Oregon 
education system before May 2 without earning a diploma or certificate, or had significant 
gaps in enrollment of 10 consecutive school days or more. Graph 5a illustrates that 
statewide 12% of current ELLs were mobile, with district averages ranging from 6% to 
53%. Graph 5b shows that statewide 8% of former ELLs were mobile, with district 
averages ranging from fewer than 5% to 40%. 

Graph 5a: Mobile Students who were Current ELLs by District 

Graph 5b: Mobile Students who were Former ELLs by District 

Table 5: Mobile English Language Learner Students 

District ID District Name 
Percent of Current 

ELLs who were 
Mobile 

Percent of Former 
ELLs who were 

Mobile 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 11% 7% 

Page 41

6 



  

 

       
 

              
             

                 
     

 
 

           

 
 

          
 

 
 
 

        
 

  
 

  
   

   
 

   
   

 

       

 
 

35% 

0 
..c t3 30% 
:S: ·c 
j ~ Statewide <5% of Current 
uJ ~ 25% Ells were Homeless 
c ..o 

~ ::l 20% 5_gi u Q) 

o ~ 15% 
1::I 
Q) Q) <5% 
~ al 10% 

8'' : : 1111111111111111111111111lll1111ll1 

20% 

0 
..c t3 
~ ~ 15% 

....J ·

....JO 
UJ >, 
L.. ..Cl 
Q) (/) 

§ :{l 10% 
0-
LL ID 
-E 
00 

Statewide <5% of Former 
Ells were Homeless 

<5% 

H :: 111111111111111111111111111111lll1 

Enclosure C-3

Section 6: Homeless English Language Learners 

This section summarizes data on current and former ELLs who were classified as homeless 
at some point during the 2014-2015 school year as defined by McKinney-Vento Act. 
Graphs 6a and 6b show that statewide, fewer than 5% of ELLs are homeless. Table 6 shows 
specific percentages for each district. 

Graph 6a: Fewer than 5% of Current ELLs were Homeless by District 

Graph 6b: Fewer than 5% of Former ELLs were Homeless by District 

Table 6: Homeless English Language Learners by District 

District ID District Name 
Percent of Current 

ELLs who were 
Homeless 

Percent of Former 
ELLs who were 

Homeless 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 13% * 

Page 42

7 



  

 

      
             

              
             

            
               

              
           

 

         

 
 

         

 
 

 

         
 

  
 

  
   

   
  

   
   

  

       

 

90% 
u 

o ·c 80% 
.s=. V) 

~o 70% 
....J >, 
....J ..0 
w (/) 60% 
cC 
~ i 50% 
5~ u (I) 40% 

~; 30% 
ffi .!:2l 
~ 2 20% 
Q) Q) 

CL ~ 10% 
3: 

0% 

90% 

u 
oE 80% 

.s=. (/) 
3: o 70% 
(/) >, 
j ..0 
w~ 60% 
'- C 

~i 50% 
L... :::::l o-

LL (I) 40% oc 
c ~ 30% 
Q) ·

~ 2 

Statewide 14% of Current 
Ells were Migrant Students 

\ 
1111111111 II II I I II I Ill I 111 11111 I 

Statewide 11 % of 
Former Ells were 
Migrant Students 

w w 20% 

o_ ~ 1
~: 11111111111111111111111 11111111 II I I I I I I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 7: Migrant English Language Learners 
This section summarizes data on current and former ELLs who were migrant students. 
Migrant students are students who have moved with his/her family within the previous 36 
months for the purpose of seeking temporary or seasonal employment in the agriculture or 
fishing industries. Graph 7a shows that 14% of current ELLs are migrant students, with 
district averages ranging from fewer than 5% to 85% . Graph 7b shows that 11% of former 
ELLs are migrant students with district averages ranging from fewer than 5% to 76%. 
Table 7 shows each district’s percentages for ELLs who were migrant students. 

Graph 7a: Percent of ELLs who are Migrant Students 

Graph 7b: Percent of ELLs who are Migrant Students 

Table 7: Percent of Migrant English Language Learner Students 

District ID District Name 
Percent of Current 

ELLs who were 
Migrant Students 

Percent of Former 
ELLs who were 

Migrant Students 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 * * 

Page 43

8 



  

       
             

               
                 

              
                 

            
                

        
 

          

 
 
 
 
 
 

        

  
 

  
   

   
  

   
   

  

       

 
 

..c 

70% 

~ ~ 60% 
_J Q) 
_J > 
w .E 50% 
1:<C 
~1: 
s ~ 40% u Q) 

-o:: 0 
- Q) 30% C L.. 
Q) Q) 

u 5 
L.. 

~ 20% 

0% 

Statewide 7% 
of Current 
Ells were 

Recent 
Arrivers 

Enclosure C-3

0 

Section 8: Recent Arriver English Language Learners 
This section summarizes data on current and former ELLs who were recent arrivers. 
Recent arrivers are students who were born outside of the US and Puerto Rico and who 
have been educated in the US for fewer than 3 cumulative years. Graph 8 shows that about 
7% of current ELLs were recent arrivers, with districts ranging from fewer than 5% to 
58%. A graph for former ELLs who were recent arrivers is not included due to the small 
number of districts that have non-suppressed data available. Districts range from having 
fewer than 5% to 7% of former ELLs who are recent arrivers. Table 8 shows the specific 
percentages by district for current and former ELLs. 

Graph 8: Percent of Current ELLs who were Recent Arrivers 

Table 8: Recent Arriver English Language Learner Students 

District ID 
District Name 

Percent of Current 
ELLs who were 
Recent Arrivers 

Percent of Former 
ELLs that were 
Recent Arrivers 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 * * 

Page 44

9 



  

 

        
            

                
                  

              
    

 

          

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           
 

  
 

  
   

    
 

    
  

 

       

 
 

Statewide 19% of 
children age 5 to 17 
a re esti mted to be 
living in poverty by the 
US census 

Enclosure C-3

Section 9: Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates 
The U.S. Census Bureau's Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE) measure 
provides an estimate of the poverty rate for children from ages 5-17 in each school district. 
Graph 9 shows that statewide 19% of children age 5 to 17 are living in poverty. Table 9 
gives specific student counts and percentages for each district based on the SAIPE measure 
of poverty for each district. 

Graph 9: Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates by District 

Table 9: Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates (SAIPE Estimates) 

District ID District Name 
Estimated Number of 
Children Ages 5-17 in 

Poverty 

Small Area Income and 
Poverty Estimate 

(SAIPE) 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 1,233 26% 

Page 45

10 



  

  

          
 

           
              

 

       
       

      

 
 
 
 

 

           

              
                    

                
                
                

                
              

 
 

        

 
 
 
 

          

    
   
  

  
 

       

 

a> 80 

~u 10 
u ·c 
a>~ 60 
a.. 0 
.c >-50 

!~ 40 '- a.. 
~u:l 30 
~ § 20 
Q) 

~ 10 

0 

The Statewide 
Median Growth 
Percentile was 50 

\ 

Enclosure C-3

Section 10: Most Common Home Languages Spoken by English Language 
Learners 
This section summarizes the home languages reported by English Language Learners. 
Languages that were reported by 6 or more students are reported in Table 10. 

Table 10: Home Languages Reported by District 
District ID District Name List of Languages 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 Spanish 

Section 11: Growth on the English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA) This section 

summarizes the performance of current ELLs on the English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA). ELPA 
is the assessment used by the State of Oregon to test language proficiency of ELLs. ELPA is only taken by 
current ELLs and students who are identified as possibly needing ELL services. Graph 11 shows the median 
growth percentile of current ELLs who took ELPA in the 2014-2015 school year. The statewide median 
growth percentile was 50. This means that the median student showed growth greater than or equal to 
50% of all students taking ELPA with similar past test scores. Higher growth percentiles indicate Table 11 
shows each district’s median growth percentile along with the count of students who took the assessment. 

Graph 11: Median Growth Percentile on ELPA by District 

Table 11: Growth on the English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA) 

District ID District Name 
Count of Student 

Growth Percentiles 
Median Growth 

Percentile 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 55 72.8 

Page 46

11 



  

  

       
           

            
       

              
              

            

              
         

               
     

 

         

 
 

            

 
 

          
 

  
 

  
  

   
 

  
   

 

       

 
 

90 
~ 

~ 80 
~ t 
-~ ·5 70 
Q) -~ 

~ ';_ 60 
c.. ..c 
..c: "' 
~ ~ 50 
e ..., 
~ ~ 40 
C: ~ 

-~ :5 -c u 30 
Q) 

::E 20 

100 

90 
~ 

0 
80 -Q) ..., 

- u ·..:; ·c 
70 C: ..., 

a,-~ 
~ Cl 

60 Q) > 
c.. ..c 
..c: Vl 50 ~ :j 
0 LJ.J 
~ ~ 40 ~ Q) 

c: E 
-~ 0 30 
-0 LL 
Q) 

::E 20 

10 

0 

Statewide the Median 
Growth Percentile for 
Current Ells was 42 

\ 

Statewide the Med ian 
Growth Percent ile for 
Former Ells was 49 

~ 

Enclosure C-3

Section 12: Median Mathematics Growth Percentile, 6th-8th Grade 
This section summarizes the median mathematics growth percentile for current and 
former ELLs from 6th to 8th grade. The growth model expresses a student’s achievement 
growth as a percentile which reflects a student’s growth relative to his or her academic 
peers For example, the median student from a district with a median mathematics growth 
percentile of 42 showed growth equal to or greater than 42% of students with similar past 
scores. Graph 12a shows the statewide median mathematics growth percentile for 6th-8th 

graders who are current ELLs was 42, with district averages ranging from 11 to 81. Graph 
12b shows the statewide median mathematics growth percentile for 6th-8th graders who 
were former ELLs was 49, with district averages ranging from 21 to 95. Table 12 gives 
each district’s median mathematics growth percentile. 

Graph 12a: Median Mathematics Growth Percentile, 6th -8th Grade for Current ELLs 

Graph 12b: : Median Mathematics Growth Percentile, 6th -8th Grade for Former ELLs 

Table 12: Median Mathematics Growth Percentile, 6th - 8th Grade 

District ID District Name 
Median Growth 

Percentile for Current 
ELLs 

Median Growth 
Percentile for Former 

ELLs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 51 70.0 

Page 47

12 



  

           
               

              
                

              
             

                  
             

                
              

               
 

         

 
 

         

 
 

           
 
 

  

 
 

  

 

   
 

   
 

  
 

 
  

 

   
 

  
 

         

 
 

Q) 

«i t5 
a:: ·c: 
C Vl 
,g i5 
ro >
:::::i .Cl 

~ (I) 
L.. _J 

('.) _J 

t:W 
o.s::. C 
0 ~ Us 
lo (_) 
Q) L.. 

>-£ 
lO 

0 -Q) ..., 
"'..., 0:: u 
c: E 
0 1/) 

:.;; 0 
"' :, > 
-c .0 
"' 1/) ~ -' 
~ u:l 
t:'. ~ 
0 Q) 

-g E 
U 0 
~ LL 

"' Q) 

>-
LI') 

100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Statewide the 5 Year 
Cohort Graduation Rate 
of Current Ells was 61 % 

\ 

Statewide the 5 Year 
Cohort Graduation Rate 
for Former Ells is 80% ~ 

Enclosure C-3

Section 13: 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rate for English Language Learners 
This section summarizes the 5 year graduation rates for current and former ELLs for the 
2014-2015 school year. Students in this cohort first entered high school in the 2010-2011 
school year. The cohort is adjusted for students who move into or out of the system, 
emigrate, or are deceased. The cohort graduation rate is calculated as the number of 
students in the cohort who graduated with a regular or modified diploma within five years 
and as a percent of the total number of students in the cohort. Graphs 13a shows that the 
statewide 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rate for current ELLs was 61%, with district averages 
ranging from 16% to more than 95%. Graph 13b shows that statewide the 5 Year Cohort 
Graduation Rate was 80% for former ELLs, with district averages ranging from 27% to 
more than 95%. Table 13 gives the 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rates for each district. 

Graph 13a: 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rate for Current ELLs 

Graph 13b: 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rate for Former ELLs 

Table 13: 5 Year Cohort Graduation Rate for English Language Learners 

District ID District Name 
Current ELLs in 
Cohort 

5 Year Cohort 
Graduation 

Rate Current 
ELLs 

Former 
ELLs in 
Cohort 

5 Year Cohort 
Graduation 

Rate Former 
ELLs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 5 60% 6 83% 

Page 48

13 



  

   
 

          
              

               
            

               
             

             
    

 

          
     

 
 

           
     

 

             
   

 

 
  

 

 
  

     
    

   

     
    

   

       

' ..., ~..., u 

90% 

80% 

ro ~ · .:::: 
~ a.. _; 70% 
<:t "' 0 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

Statewide 26% of Current ELL 4 
Year Graduates Enroll in a 
Post-Secondary Institutions 
within 16 months 

\ 
:: 11 I 111111111111111 I I 
100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% I 
0% I I 

Statewide 43% of Former 
ELL 4 Year Graduates Enroll 
in Post-Secondary 
Institutions within 16 Months 

\ 

Enclosure C-3

Section 14: Post-Secondary Enrollment 

This section summarizes post-secondary enrollment of 4-Year Cohort High School 
Graduates within 16 months of high school graduation for current and former ELLs. Graph 
14a shows that statewide 26% of current ELLs who graduate high school in 4 years enter a 
post-secondary institution within 16 months. District averages range from fewer than 5% 
to 80%. Graph 14b shows that statewide 43% of former ELLs who graduate high school in 
4 years enter a post-secondary institution within 16 months. District averages range from 
fewer than 5% to more than 95%. Table 14 shows the percentage of post-secondary 
enrollment for each district. 

Graph 14a: Post-secondary enrollment of 4 Year Graduate Current ELLs within 16 
Months of High School Graduation 

Graph 14b: Post-secondary enrollment of 4 Year Graduate Former ELLs within 16 
Months of High School Graduation 

Table 14: Post-Secondary Enrollment of 4 Year Graduate ELLs within 16 Months of 
High School Graduation 

District ID District Name 

Percent Current ELL 4 Year 
Graduates who Enroll in 

Post- Secondary Institutions 

Percent Former ELL 4 Year 
Graduates who Enroll in 

Post- Secondary Institutions 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 * 33% 

Page 49

14 



  

         

            
          

 

              
  

            
             

 
 

      
             
              
           

Enclosure C-3

Part C: Demographics of Students in English Language Learner Programs 

This section fulfills 327.016(c)(A, B, C) by providing information on the demographics of 
students in English language learner programs in each school district, including 

(A) The average number of years students have been enrolled in an English language 
learner programs; 

(B) The average number of years the students have attended their current schools; 
(C) The percentage of students who also receive special education and related services. 

The sections in Part C include: 
 Section 15: Average Number of Years Students have been Enrolled as an ELL, 
 Section 16: Average Number of Years ELLs are Enrolled in a School, and 
 Section 17: English Language Learners who also Receive Special Education Services 

Page 50

15 



  

             
              

             
           

             
            

     
 

            
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

             
 

                 

                  

 
 

L.. 
ro 
V) 

c vi 
Q) _J 

"O _J 

2w 
if) V) 

vi ro 
L.. 
ro -o 
Q) Q) 
>-;;::::: 
- ·u; o ro 
L.. u 
Q) 

..Cl 
E 
:::::l 
z 

KG 1 st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 1 0th 11th 12th 

I I I I I I I I I I I I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 15: Average Number of Years Students have been Enrolled as an ELL 
This section provides the average number of years students have been enrolled as an ELL 
by grade. This average was calculated using the total years of English Language Learner 
instruction from ODE’s Average Daily Membership Data Collection. Graph 15 shows that, 
statewide, 8th Grade ELLs average 5.9 years of ELL instruction, the highest average in the 
state by grade. Table 15 gives each district’s average number of years students are 
classified as ELLs by grade. 

Graph 15: Average Number of Years Students have been Enrolled as an ELL, 
Statewide Averages 

Table 15: Average Number of Years Students are Classified as an English Language 
Learner 

District ID District Name KG 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 0.92 1.93 * * 3.92 * * 5.02 * * * * * 

16 

Page 51



  

             
               

         
            

                  
              

                
 

 

             
               

                
               

          
 
 

            
   

 
 

            
        

 
            

        
 
  

                   

                   

 

                  

5 -0 
L.. 

i 4 
Eo 
::i 0 
z .c: 3 
(I) u 
OJ(/) 
!'Cl !'Cl 
L.. 

~ -~ 2 
<( ~ 
(I) !'Cl 

"O (I) 

":i; ~ 1 
(I) 

ro 
u5 0 

KG 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 

• Non-ELL • Current ELL 

I I I I I I I I I I I I 
I I I I I I I I I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 16: Average Number of Years ELLs are Enrolled in a School 
This section shows the average number of years current ELLs are enrolled in their current 
school aggregated to the district-level. Oregon public schools’ grade compositions vary 
widely both within and between districts. For example, some grade combinations include 
K-3, K-5, K-6, K-12, 6-8, 7-8, and 9-12. Due to this variation, it is not reasonable to directly 
compare districts on the average number of number of years students are enrolled. For 
this reason, non-ELLs are included in the graph and table below as a comparison group for 
ELLs. 

Graph 16 shows that non-ELLs and current ELLs have a similar average number of years in 
their current school in the early grades. In 1st-4th grade, current ELLs average a longer 
tenure in a single school than non-ELLs. This trend changes in 5th grade and the gap 
increases as students reach high school age. Table 16 shows the average number of years 
by grade for each district by non-ELLs and current ELLs. 

Graph 16: Statewide Average Number of Years Non-ELLS and Current ELLs are 
Enrolled in a School 

Table 16: Average Years ELLs and Non-ELLS have Attend Their Current Schools 
*Y indicates current ELLs. N indicates all other students including former ELLs. 

Table 16: Average Years ELLs and Non-ELLS have Attend Their Current Schools 
*Y indicates current ELLs. N indicates all other students including former ELLs. 

District ID District Name LEP* KG 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 N 1.02 1.81 2.47 3.14 3.51 4.19 2.72 3.14 3.86 1.12 1.89 2.72 3.57 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 Y 1 1.67 * * 2.89 * * 2 * * * * * 

17 

Page 52



  

          
              

             
             

                 
               
               

   
 

             
   

 
 

             
   

 
 

            
    

    
    
   

    
   

       

 
 

45% 

~ 40% o __ 
..c:= 3= ..c 35% 
(J) m 
...J·-
...JO 30% w co 
c..c: 
~ j 25% 
:::, (J) 

Oc 20% 
- Q) 0-o 15% - :::, c-
Q) (/) 

~ Q) 10% Q) .... 
0... Q) 

3= 5% 

0% 

45% 

0 ~ 40% ..c: --
3: .0 

Cll 
~-~ 35% 
....10 
w Cll 30% .... ..c: 
(l) -§ "3: 25% 
0 Cf) 
LL+--

C 
20% - (l) 0-c:, - :::, c- 15% (l) (/) 

~ (l) 
(l) .... 

10% 0.. (l) 
3: 

5% 

0% 

II 

Stateside 18% of Current 
ELLS are Students with a 
Disability 

\ 

Statewide 10% of 
Former Ell s were 
Students with a 
Disability 

Ill 111111111111111 I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 17: English Language Learners who also Receive Special Education Services 
This section summarizes the percentage of current and former ELLs who are also receive 
special education and related services. Graph 17a shows that 18% of current ELLs 
statewide are also identified as students with a disability, with district percentages ranging 
from 7% to 40%. Graph 17b shows that 10% of former ELLs are also identified as students 
with a disability, with district percentages ranging from fewer than 5% to 42%. Table 17 
gives the percentage of current and former ELLs who are also identified as students with a 
disability by district. 

Graph 17a: Percent of Current ELLs who also Receive Special Education and Related 
Services by District 

Graph 17b: Percent of Former ELLs who also Receive Special Education and Related 
Services by District 

Table 17: Percent of English Language Learners who also Receive Special 
Education and Related Services 

District ID District Name 
Percent of Current ELLs 

who were SWDs 
Percent of Former ELLs 

who were SWDs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 14% 10% 

Page 53

18 



  

        

         
           

 
 

     
        
            
       
             

 
        
        
        

Enclosure C-3

Part D: Other Information on English Language Learner Students 

This section fulfills 327.016(c)(D) by providing information on other demographics of 
students in English language learner programs in each school district and other 
information. 

The sections in Part D include: 
 Section 18: English Language Learners by Grade, 
 Section 19: Percent of English Language Learners who Exit by Grade, 
 Section 20: Not Chronically Absent English Language Learners, 
 Section 21: Percent of English language Learners who Met the Freshman On-Track 

Criteria, 
 Section 22: Dropout Rates for English Language Learners, 
 Section 23: English Language Learners with Discipline Incidents, and 
 Section 24: Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy. 

Page 54

19 



  

       
                

             
        

 
 

         

 
 
 
 

        

 
 

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

        
 

     

 
 

"O 
<ti 
'-
(9 
>, 

..0 
V) 
_j 
_j 

w -C 
Q) 

c 
::I u -0 -C 
Q) 
u 
'-
Q) 

D... 

11% 

4% 

More than 77% of 
Current Ells are 
in grades K-5 

KG 1 st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 1 0th 11th 12th 

Grade 

Enclosure C-3

Section 18: English Language Learners by Grade 
This section shows the distribution of ELLs by grade. Graph 18 illustrates that most 
current ELLs were in grades Kindergarten through 5th grade. Table 18 gives the percentage 
of current ELLs by grade for each district. 

Graph 18: Percent of English Language Learners by Grade 

Table 18: Percent of Current ELLs by Grade 

District 
ID 

District Name 
Current 

ELLs 
Pct 
KG 

Pct 
1st 

Pct 
2nd 

Pct 
3rd 

Pct 
4th 

Pct 
5th 

Pct 
6th 

Pct 
7th 

Pct 
8th 

Pct 
9th 

Pct 
10th 

Pct 
11th 

Pct 
12th 

2101 Lebanon Community 
SD 9 

83 16% 16% 10% 8% 17% * * 12 
% 

* * * * * 

20 

Page 55



 
 

           
                

                 
       

 

           

 
 
 
 
 
 

          

                  

 
 
 

                 

20% 19% 

>-, 
18% 

..Cl 
16% +-' ·x 

w 14% 
0 
..c 12% 5 Q) 
(/) "O 

10% _J <tl 
_J L.. 

we:> 
8% -0 

+-' 6% C 
Q) 
u 

4% L.. 
Q) 

0.. 
2% 

0% 
KG 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 

I I I I I 
I I I I I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 19: Percent of English Language Learners who Exit by Grade 
This section summarizes the percent a current ELLs who exit by grade. Graph 19 shows that 
statewide 19% of ELLs who exit ELL status are 5th graders. Table 19 gives the percentage of 
students exiting by grade for each district. 

Graph 19: Statewide Average Percent of ELLs who Exit by Grade 

Table 19: Percent English Language Learners who Exit by Grade 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 * * * * * * * * * * * * * 

District ID District Name KG 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th 7th 8th 9th 10th 11th 12th 

21 

Page 56



  

        
              

             
             

              
          

         
            

       
 

           

 
 
 

           

 
 
 

          
 

  
 

  
   

   
   

   

       

100% 
Q) u 
'- ·-
(I) .l::, 90% 
o -~ 
r.O 80% 
$ >, 

70% en ..o 
_J ..... 
_J C 

60% w Q) 
en 

..... ..Cl 
50% ~ <( 

t:: >, 
40% ::::i= u (I) u 

c5 ·c 30% 
ce 

20% Q) r. 
uU 
L... ..... 
Q) 0 10% o...z 

0% 

..... 100% 
Q) u 
ro E 90% 
0 -~ 
r.O 80% 
$ >, j:: 70% 

u:J ~ 60% 
ai ~ 50% 
E >-o = 40% 
LL ~ o ·c 30% 
..... 0 

~E 20% 
u U 
ai O 10% 
o...z 

0% 

Statewide 85% of 
current Ells are Not 
Chronically Absent 

Statewide 82% of 
Former Ells are Not 
Chronically Absent 

~ 

\ 

Enclosure C-3

Section 20: Not Chronically Absent English Language Learners 
This section summarizes the percent of current and former ELLs who are ‘Not Chronically 
Absent.’ Oregon defines chronic absenteeism as missing more than 10% of enrolled school 
days in a school year. Thus, ‘Not Chronically Absent’ students attend school 90% or more 
of their enrolled days. Graph 20a shows that statewide 85% of current ELLs are ‘Not 
Chronically Absent’, with districts averages ranging from 42% to greater than 95%. Graph 
20b shows that statewide 82% of former ELLs are ‘Not Chronically Absent’, with district 
averages ranging from 13% to greater than 95%. Table 20 gives the average percentages 
by district for current and former ELLs. 

Graph 20a: Percent of Current ELLs who are Not Chronically Absent 

Graph 20b: Percent of Former ELLs who are Not Chronically Absent 

Table 20: Percent of ELLs who are Not Chronically Absent 

District ID District Name 
Current ELLs Percent 

Not Chronically Absent 
Former ELLs Percent 

Not Chronically Absent 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 81% 84% 

Page 57

22 



  

          
 

               
                

            
                 

            
              

              
 

             

 
 

            

 
 
 

            
 

  
 

  
  

  
 

  
  

 

       

   

 

C 
co ...... 
E-52 
..c .l::, 
(J) (J) 
(!) ",._o 
LL >
_J .0 
_J~ 
w (_) 
...... co C ,._ 
(I) I-
,._ I 
,._ C 
::JO 
0 (I) - ,._ 0 (I) 

1=:s: 
(I) 0 
(_) ..c 
ffi 3: 
a.. 

C 

E ti 
~E 
(J) (J) 

~o 
LL >-
_J .0 
_J~ 
w (_) 
,._ co 
(I),._ 

Et-;-
,._ C 

~o 
- (I) 0 ,._ 

(I) 

c 3: 
(I) 0 
(_) ..c 
ffi 3: 
a.. 

100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 1 I 10% 

0% 

100% 

90% 

80% 

70% 

60% 

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Statewide 62% of 
Current ELL Freshman 
were On-Track \ 

Statewide 77% 
of Former ELL ~ 
Freshman were 
On-Track 

Enclosure C-3

Section 21: Percent of English language Learners who Met the Freshman On-Track 
Criteria 
This section summarizes the percent of current and former ELLs who met the freshman on-
track criteria. To be considered a freshman on-track a student must have earned at least 6 
credits or 25% of the number required for high school graduation, whichever is higher, by 
the end of their first year of high school. Graph 21a shows that statewide 62% of current 
ELLs met the freshman on-track criteria, with district averages ranging from 17% to 
greater than 95%. Graph 21b shows that statewide 77% of former ELLs met the freshman 
on-track criteria, with district averages ranging from fewer than 5% to greater than 95%. 

Graph 21a: Percent of Current ELL Freshman who were on Track by District 

Graph 21b: Percent of Former ELL Freshman who were On-Track by District 

Table 21: English Language Learners who Met the Freshman On-Track Criteria 

District ID District Name 
Current ELLs 

Freshman On-Track 
Rate 

Former ELLs 
Freshman On-Track 

Rate 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 * 88% 

Page 58

23 



  

       
             

             
            

               
               

               
           

 

        

 
            

 

         

 
            

 
 
 

         

 
 

 

  

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

  

         

80% 

j 70% 
_J 

~ 60% 
Q) 

~ 50% 
() 

Statewide the Dropout 
Rate for Current Ells 
was 8% 

i 4
o% \ 1i'i 30% 

Cl'.'.'. 

§_ 20% 

i, 1
::: 1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 11 1111111111111 II 1111 

(/) 
_J 
_J 

70% 

w 60% .... 
Q) 

§ 50% 
LL 

.E 40% 
(/) 

.l!l 
&_ 30% 
-s 
g_ 20% e 

Statewide the Dropout Rate for 
Former Ells was 3.7% 

<5% 

0 

1 
: : II I Ill llll Ill I Ill I Ill I Ill llll Ill I Ill I Ill I Ill llll Ill I Ill I Ill I Ill llll 1111111111111111111111111111111111 I I 

Enclosure C-3

Section 22: Dropout Rates for English Language Learners 
This section summarizes the dropout rate for current and former ELLs. The one-year 
dropout rate is calculated by dividing the number of dropouts (grades 9-12) by the number 
of students reported on the October 1 Membership (Enrollment) Data Collection for grades 
9-12. Graph 22a shows the statewide dropout rate for current ELLs was 8%, with district 
averages ranging from fewer than 5% to 73%. Graph 22b shows the statewide dropout 
rate for former ELLs was fewer than 5%, with district averages ranging from fewer than 
5% to 63%. Table 22 gives the dropout rate for each district. 

Graph 22a: Dropout Rate for Current ELLs by District 

*Only districts with more than 6 current ELLs are represented on the graph. 

Graph 22b: Dropout Rate for Former ELLs by District 

*Only districts with more than 6 former ELLs are represented on the graph. 

Table 22: Dropout Rates, Current and Former English Learners 

District 
ID District Name 

Denominator 
Current ELLs 

Dropout 
Rate 

Current 
ELLs 

Denominator 
Former ELLs 

Dropout 
Rate 

Former ELLs 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 14 0.0% 40 0.0% 

Page 59

24 



  

       
               

             
               

             
                 

              
             

 

              
 

 
 

              
 

 
 

             
 

 
  

 
  

    
     

  

    
     

  

       

 

25% 

~c .r. Q) 
"O _g ·13 20% 

~~ 
_'.'.l :g Statewide 3% of Current Ells 
ul '.9-:g15% had at Least One Discipline Incident ..... (.) ..... 
r:::. Cl) Cl) 

~ o o 
8 :g ~O% <5% ...... o 
o ..... ..... (/) 
r:::. ell 

I~ :: 1111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

"O ..... 
ell r:::. .r. Q) 

25% 

{ ~ 20% Statewide 4% of Former Ells 
(/) Q) had at Least One Discipline 
_J r:::. 
ul '.9-:g Incident 
al ~ ~ 15% 
Ei50 
0 Q) >-
u.. r:::. .0 
.,_ 0 10% 
~ U) <5% 
r:::. ell 
Q) Q) 
~_J 

~ m : : 11111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111111 

Enclosure C-3

Section 23: English Language Learners with Discipline Incidents 
This section summarizes the percent of current and former ELLs who had at least one 
discipline incident during the 2014-2015 school year. A discipline incident is defined as an 
in school suspension, out of school suspension, or an expulsion. About 3% of current ELLs 
had a discipline incident, with Graph 23a showing that district percentages ranged from 
fewer than 5% to 14%. About 4% of former ELLs had a discipline incident, with Graph 23b 
showing that districts percentages ranged from fewer than 5% to 24%. Table 24 gives 
specific percentages for each district with 6 or more current and former ELLs. 

Graph 23a: Percent of Current ELLs who had at Least One Discipline Incident by 
District 

Graph 23b: Percent of Former ELLs who had at Least One Discipline Incident by 
District 

Table 23:Percent of Current and Former ELLs who had at Least One Discipline 
Incident 

District ID District Name 
Percent of Current ELLs 
who had at Least One 

Discipline Incident 

Percent of Former ELLs 
who had at Least One 

Discipline Incident 

2101 Lebanon Community SD 9 <5% 7% 

Page 60

25 



  

     
                

            
                   

       
 

               
            

    
      
       
            

     
 

            
                

        
     

 

             
             

         
             

 
 

        
 

  
 

  
   

   
  

     

     

     

     

      

     

     

      

     

     

      

     

                
         

Enclosure C-3

Section 24: Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy 
The Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy has been in the design process for two years. The 
program was piloted during the 2014-2015 school year. The State Board of Education 
adopted the final rules for the Seal in April 2016. The full rollout of the State Seal of 
Biliteracy will begin in summer of 2016. 

The Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy is an award students can earn by proving language 
proficiency in both English and another partner language. Students must meet three 
criteria for the seal: 

 Satisfy all regular graduation requirements, 
 Meet Essential Skills in English, and 
 Score at the accepted level on the Partner Language Proficiency Assessment or 

provide a portfolio of evidence. 

The assessment and/or portfolio must assess the four language domains of listening, 
speaking, reading, and writing. The award is in the form of a certificate and an embossed 
seal that can be affixed to the graduating students’ diplomas. The seal will also be noted on 
students’ transcripts for post-secondary applications. 

Table 24 shows the 10 districts and one charter school that reported awarding Biliteracy 
Seals during the 2014-2015 school year. Statewide, 350 Biliteracy Seals were awarded in 
Spanish, Russian, Chinese, Ukrainian, Japanese, French, German, Somali, Vietnamese, 
Persian. These may have been awarded to students who were never English Language 
Learners. 

Table 24: Number of Biliteracy Seals awarded statewide and by District, a Pilot Year 

District ID District Name 
Number of Students 

who earned the 
Biliteracy Seal 

999 State of Oregon 350 

2243 Beaverton SD 48J 10 

2191 Central SD 13J 30 

1901 Corvallis SD 509J 34 

4040 Four Rivers Community School* 7 

2239 Hillsboro SD 1J 16 

2048 Medford SD 549C 5 

1924 North Clackamas SD 12 55 

2180 Portland SD 1J 84 

2142 Salem-Keizer SD 24J 58 

1922 West Linn-Wilsonville SD 3J 9 

2146 Woodburn SD 103 42 

*Four Rivers Community School is a charter school that does not belong to a school district. 
Source: Voluntary Reporting to the Oregon Department of Education 

Page 61

26 



 
 

 

  
 

 

  
   

  
 

 
 

 

    
  

  

  
  

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 
     

     
     

     
     

     
 

  

 
  

 
Enclosure C-3

Office of Education Equity 
HB 3499 EL Improvement Plan – Jan 2017 

Please return to: 
Title III EL Improvement Plan 

mailto:leslie.casebeer@state.or.us
https://district.ode.state.or.us/home/
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=116
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=116


Office of Education Equity 
HB 3499 EL Improvement Plan – Jan 2017 

The goals of Title III Language Instruction for English Learners and Immigrant Youth  are to ensure that all English learners (ELs) attain 

English proficiency and meet rigorous state academic standards.  To measure progress in meeting these goals, States receiving funds 

under Title III must develop annual measurable achievement objectives (AMAOs) which include three components: 

1. The percentage of ELs on track to obtaining English proficiency within 6 years based on a growth model. 

2. (a) Percentage of ELs identified fewer than 5 years obtaining English proficiency; (b) percentage of EL students identified for 

five or more years obtaining English proficiency. 

3. Growth model for ELs on academic content assessment and graduation rate as allowed in Oregon’s ESEA waiver.  (Note: 

AMAO 3 includes current and monitored EL students.)   For the 14-15 school year –all districts are rated based on graduation 

rate and participation in state assessments - these are the focus areas for AMAO 3 improvement plans. 

The Oregon Department of Education (ODE) annually determines the targets for each of the Annual Measureable Achievement 

Objectives (AMAOs).  Districts must meet all three AMAOs each year in order to meet the Title III accountability requirements, or be 

unrated in one or more AMAO targets and met the AMAO target(s) receiving a rating. 

1. If a Title III district does not meet one or more AMAO target(s) for two consecutive years, the district is required to develop 

an improvement plan that addresses the factors that prevented the district from achieving all AMAOs.  

2. The plan is updated annually based on the district’s performance on the AMAO for the following year. 

3. If the district fails to meet one or more AMAO target(s) for four consecutive years the state is required to have the district 

modify its curriculum, program, and method of instruction; or determine whether the district will continue to receive Title III 

funds related to the failure to meet the AMAOs, and require the district to replace educational personnel relevant to the 

district’s failure to meet the objectives.  [Section 3122(b)(4)].  Please refer to the required criteria above in your 

improvement plan if your district is in four-year status. 

In an effort to ensure the district is meeting all AMAO targets, and that ELs have the best opportunities to learn, the district must 

address all of the items on the following pages in its improvement plan.  Districts in Title III 4 or 4+ year improvement status must 

address the bold, italic items in item 3 above.  

  

 
 2 

 
Enclosure C-3

Page 63



https://district.ode.state.or.us/apps/login/
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=116
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=116
http://www.ode.state.or.us/search/results/?id=116


mailto:sabrina.alexander@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:wayne.raposa@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:wayne.raposa@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:wayne.raposa@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:wayne.raposa@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:dawn.baker@lebanon.k12.or.us
mailto:martha.calderon@lebanon.k12.or.us






















































































































































































Enclosure C-4
Page 156

PAULY, ROOERS, AND co., P.C. 
12700 SW 72nd Avr,. Tigatd, OR 97223 
(503) 620-2632 (503) 684-7523 FAX www .paulyr9gersandcocpas.com 

Independent ~uditors' Report Required by Oregon State Regulations 

September 26, 2016 

We have auditec! the basic financial statements of Sand Ridge Charter School as of and for the year ended June 30, 201~. and have issued our report thereon dated September 26, 2016. We conducted our audit in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Sand Ridge Charter School 's basic financial statements ~re free of material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions of lnws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statues as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Stmdards·for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could bave a direct and material effect on the determination of basic financial statements amounts. However, providi11g an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and ace9rdingly, we do not ~xpress such an opinion. 
We perfonned procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following: · 

• Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by Jaw. • Public contracts aod purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C). 
In connectinn with our testing nothing c.ame to our atteo!ion th_at cau$.¢4_ us fo -b.eJi~ve .that Sand Ridg-e Charter S-cbool, -Oregon was not in substantial oompHance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-J 0-000 through 162-1 0-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations. 
OAR 161-10-0230 Internal Control 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpolie of expressing our opinions on the basic financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing opinion on the effectiveness of the internal contro] over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. 



Enclosure C-4
Page 157

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, ma11agement and the Oregon 

Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties. 

Kr744t-$ 
Ro(' R. ROGERS, CPA 

PAULY, ROGERS AND CO., P.C. 

- 23 • 



Class P C D H Contract

S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4H 5 6 7 8 9
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23 24P 25P 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
27 28* 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

42 2 1 1
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 13D 14 5 6 7 8 9 10H 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26Q 27P 28 19 20 21 22 23H 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30C 31C 26 27 28 29 30 24 25H 26 27 28 29 30

31

45 1 2 4
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15H 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
21 22 23 24S 25P 26P 27 18 19H 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

43 2 1
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 2 3 4 5Q 6P 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2
8 9C 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8S* 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11P 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30 27 28H 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

43 2 1 1
173 7 3 1 7 0

Adopted ***

Other: P=1

Class: 19 Class: 17
Other: H=1, P=2 Other: H=1

Apr. 2018 May 2018

Other: P=1, C=1 Other: H=1

June 2018

Dec. 2017

Class: 18 Class: 18 Class: 11
Other: D=1, P=1, C=2 Other: H=2 Other: H=1

Class: 19

Class: 19 Class: 22 Class: 6

Class: 4 Class: 20

Oct. 2017 Nov. 2017

Other:

Jan. 2018 Feb. 2018 Mar. 2018

Lebanon Community Schools 2017-18 Calendar 

Shaded = Non Contract
H=Holiday
C=Parent Conferences

Sept. 2017

S=Semester
Q=Quarter

P=Preparation
D=Staff Development

Other: P=2

Aug. 2017

Other: H=1

ORIGINAL PROPOSED CALENDAR

Enclosure C-5
Page 158



January 2, 2018 Classes Resume

December 18-29, 2017
December 25, 2017

January 1, 2018

May 28, 2018 Holiday - Memorial Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 
End of Quarter

Holiday - Presidents' Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Days - Spring Break - NO SCHOOL

Holiday - NO SCHOOL
Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

November 23, 2017 Holiday - Thanksgiving Day - NO SCHOOL

February 19, 2018

March 26-30, 2018

April 5, 2018

Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

September 4, 2017 Holiday - Labor Day - NO SCHOOL

End of Quarter

October 30, 2017
Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL
Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

November 24, 2017

January 26, 2018 Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 
Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

October 26, 2017

November 10, 2017
November 22, 2017

October 27, 2017
October 30, 2017

August 25, 2017 Staff Preparation Day
SCHOOL BEGINSAugust 28, 2017

Holiday - Veterans' Day - NO SCHOOL

Staff Preparation DayAugust 24, 2017

Lebanon Community Schools 2017-2018 Calendar

January 25, 2018

June 8, 2018 Classes End

June 1, 2018 Strawberry Fair - EARLY DISMISSAL

April 6, 2018
April 9, 2018 Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL

January 24, 2018 End of the Semester
January 15, 2018 Holiday - Martin Luther King Jr. Day - NO SCHOOL

EMERGENCY CLOSURE MAKE-UP CONTINGENCY PROCEDURES STEPS IN ORDER:

Early Release Collaboration Days will be every Wednesday beginning August 30 for all schools.

1.  Up to six (6) class days on June 11-15 & 18

* Some students may begin school later due to incoming student orientation.  More information will be provided by the school.

Adopted ***

June 11, 2018 Preparation Day

June 5, 2018 High School Graduation

Enclosure C-5
Page 159



Class P C D H Contract

S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 4 5 1 2

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4H 5 6 7 8 9
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23D 24P 25P 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
27 28* 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

42 2 1 1 46
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10H 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26Q 27P 28 19 20 21 22 23H 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30C 31C 26 27 28 29 30 24 25H 26 27 28 29 30

31

46 1 2 4 53
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

14 15H 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
21 22 23 24 25S 26P 27 18 19H 20 21 22 23 24 18 19 20 21 22 23Q 24
28 29P 30 31 25 26 27 28 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

38 2 1 41
S M T W H F S S M T W H F S S M T W H F S

1 2P 3C 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3 4 5 6 7 8S* 9

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10 11P 12 13 14 15 16
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 30 27 28H 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

47 2 1 1 51
173 7 3 1 7 191

ALL SUBJECT TO BARGAINING CONTRACT
Adopted ***

Other: P=1

Class: 19 Class: 17
Other: H=1, P=2 Other: H=1

Apr. 2018 May 2018

Other: P=1, C=1 Other: H=1

June 2018

Dec. 2017

Class: 18 Class: 18 Class: 11
Other: D=1, P=1, C=2 Other: H=2 Other: H=1

Class: 19

Class: 19 Class: 22 Class: 6

Class: 4 Class: 20

Oct. 2017 Nov. 2017

Other:

Jan. 2018 Feb. 2018 Mar. 2018

Lebanon Community Schools 2017-18 Calendar 

Shaded = Non Contract
H=Holiday
C=Parent Conferences

Sept. 2017

Q=Quarter

P=Preparation
D=Staff Development

Other: P=2

Aug. 2017

Other: H=1

S=Semester

COMMITTEE PROPOSED CALENDAR

Enclosure C-5
Page 160



Early Release Collaboration Days will be every other Wednesday beginning August 30 for LHS.

ALL SUBJECT TO BARGAINING CONTRACT

January 2, 2018 Classes Resume

December 18-29, 2017
December 25, 2017

January 1, 2018

August 24, 2017 Staff Preparation Day

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL

May 28, 2018 Holiday - Memorial Day - NO SCHOOL

Non-Contract Day - NO SCHOOL
November 23, 2017

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

Holiday - Presidents' Day - NO SCHOOL

End of Quarter
Non-Contract Days - Spring Break - NO SCHOOL

Holiday - NO SCHOOL
Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

March 23, 2018

Non-Contract Day - Winter Break - NO SCHOOL

March 26-30, 2018

January 26, 2018

September 4, 2017 Holiday - Labor Day - NO SCHOOL

End of Quarter

October 31, 2017
Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL
Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL

Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

November 24, 2017

January 29, 2018 Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 
Staff Preparation Day - NO SCHOOL 

October 26, 2017

November 10, 2017
November 22, 2017

Holiday - Thanksgiving Day - NO SCHOOL

October 27, 2017
October 30, 2017

August 25, 2017 Staff Preparation Day
SCHOOL BEGINSAugust 28, 2017

Holiday - Veterans' Day - NO SCHOOL

Staff Preparation DayAugust 23, 2017

Lebanon Community Schools 2017-2018 Calendar

Holiday - Martin Luther King Jr. Day - NO SCHOOL

June 8, 2018 Classes End

June 1, 2018 Strawberry Fair - EARLY DISMISSAL

February 19, 2018

April 2, 2018
April 3, 2018 Parent Conference - NO SCHOOL

January 25, 2018 End of the Semester
January 15, 2018

Early Release Collaboration Days will be every Wednesday beginning August 30 for all K-8 schools.

* Some students may begin school later due to incoming student orientation.  More information will be provided by the school.

Adopted ***

June 11, 2018 Preparation Day

June 5, 2018 High School Graduation

Enclosure C-5
Page 161



CONCERNS REGARDING EARLY RELEASE EVERY OTHER WEEK ONLY AT LHS 

• Community members have students in the high school and grade schools. 
This will create confusion and inconvenience for these families, especially 
those that work outside the home and depend on the older children to be 
home after school with the younger children. 

• On the days that there would be early release for the grade schools and not 
LHS, a minimum of 16 of our drivers would have to wait at least an hour 
between routes. This is not an efficient use of their time and our resources. 
We have several routes that travel the same area twice due to current 
dismissal times. With the proposed change, these routes would travel the 
same area three times. 

• This proposed change could also affect tutoring students and times on 
these days. Most of them are mid-day transport and the time frame would 
have to be adjusted just on these days which creates even more confusion 
for families and transportation. 

Enclosure C-5
Page 162



Enclosure C-6
Page 163

Lebanon High School Construction Program 

Single year house build project: 

The Lebanon High School Construction Program is able to build an actual house 

for sale at the end of the school year for a profit to help the funding of the house 

the next year. 

The house size would range from 1,200 to 1,600 sq. Ft. The total to build a 

house of this size, including property, would be from $120,000.00 to 

$ 160,000.00. 

The current market value of entry level houses in Lebanon is quite good. There 

is a high demand, and a shortage in availability. This creates a very optimal 

market to build and sell houses. 

The average price sq. ft. of a new house for sale is $ 130.00-$ 145.00 per sq. ft. 

The exact amount is$ 146.44 per sq. ft. in the last 12 months. This information 

was located by the real estate price index here in Lebanon. 

It will cost the construction program$ 98.44 per sq. ft. to build the house. We can 

sell it for$ 145.00 per sq. ft. On a 1500 sq. ft. house we can make$ 69,855.00 

Financing 

The Construction Program has been awarded approximately$ 80,000.00 in 

seed money to start the build of the house. This money was from the sale of some 

property that the district owned out by 7 Oak Middle School. The construction 

Program would use this money to purchase property, and get permits, and start 

the house. The foundation, underfloor framing, plumbing, HVAC, Insulation, 

decking, and wall framing, would be done with this money. The additional funding 

will be offered out to the school district, or private institution for funding. 

The additional cost need will be$ 70,000.00 to$ 80,000.00 for total completion 

of the home. This also includes a 7% contingency. 



Enclosure C-6
Page 164

·This funding of the house will be part of the educational experience for 

students. Seeking funding is a big part of construction. The real world applications 

to this Capstone Project are numerous. The house will be sold by a licensed Real 

Estate broker that owns a well know and reputable real estate company. There 

will be a standard 6% commission with a good deal of that commission being 

donated back to the construction program after closing of the house. It will also 

allow students to work closely with the professionals in the trade. There will be 

many interactions with the customers that purchase the house. Customer 

interaction is a very large portion of the construction process. Making people 

happy and feel valued because of work completed, can be rewarding in itself. 

Conflict resolution, money verses time spent, quality control, critical thinking, 

communication, customer satisfaction, integrity, honesty, self-discipline, task 

completion, are all part of the construction program. More importantly, all of 

these things are required for a person to be successful in life, regardless of the 

occupation chosen. 

The fiscal needs in the first year will be about $75,000.00 repaid upon sale of 

the house. The second year will be closer to$ 50,000.00, repaid upon sale of the 

house. The third year will be about$ 25,000.00 repaid upon sale of the house. 

The fourth year and each subsequent year the program will be self sufficient 

Student Participation 

There will be 2 block classes in the morning of almost 1 and a half hours each 

of about 25 students that go to the job site to build the house each day. There will 

be 2 beginning classes in the afternoon of about 30 students each that will travel 

to the house once a week to see the progress, and realize the reasons they are 

learning the basic importance of the skill development in their classes and how 

the skills will be applied to the project the next year. There will be about 110 

students directly involved in this house project. That is only the construction 

students. The drafting program will be the students that develop the house plans 

that are being built. There will be about 10-15 house plans to be chosen from to 

build at the site. These will go through some intense scrutiny and a decision will 

be made. This process will be done in the classroom setting with ample learning 



Enclosure C-6
Page 165

opportunities from Mr. Benedict for his drafting classes. Drafting students 

involved will be approximately 30 students. 

There will be some very good learning opportunities from the marketing 

students to promote and help out in the financing portion of this project. 

Approximately 25 Marketing students can be involved. 

There could be about 25 Agricultural, and Horticulture students involved in land 

scape aspect of the project. 

Exact Numbers 

See the attachment: 

Summary 

The construction of a home is a very valuable portion of most everybody's life. 

Giving students an early opportunity so see and be involved in the house building 

process will give them an in-depth look and a head start into the real world 

processes that come with house ownership, house purchasing, house selling, and 

more importantly, living in a house. 

The Lebanon High School Construction Program could be the model for many 

school districts to follow. The school district that partners with the community to 

educate students in real world projects that produce students that can perform 

high wage jobs, and have a head start in the next step in life, regardless of what 

the next step is. The next step of education, trade school, military, or the work 

force. This project will help student. It will benefit the community, and help in the 

funding issues that we face in the construction program and in education. 



Enclosure C-6
Page 166

' 
Warrior House Bid Sheet BREAKDOWN ·AND INSPECTION REPORT 

~1J . ._ _ ........ •• • .._,., • • .._,. • ' ~ I - ... '11111P" 

BID SHEET FOR \JA-<2-:~\,0fL f.lo-vs§ BUILDER 

PROPERTY ADDRESS !STREET, CITY, STATE, ZIP) 

~- 1 ¼ "t::> 

1. Plans/Arch/Survey, Engr . 

2, Permits 

3. Temp. Power/Excavation 

4. Footings & Foundation 

5, Framing Material 15,IJOO.-·~ 
6, Trusses 

7, Framing Labor 

8, Roofing 

9, Windows/Sliders 

10, Plumbing (Rough) JI DD, q;. 
11, Electrical (Rough) 

12, Fireplace 

13. Masonry Veneer & Chimney 

1'4. Prefab, Fireplace 

15. Basem8nt & Garage Fir. 

16, Siding 

17. Heating/Air Cond . 

18. Insulation 3/l:.t"J,~ 
19, Drywall(Taperfexture 

20, Sewer/Septic Ibo.~ 
21. Water Hook-up 

22. Well 

23. Downspouts & Gutters 

24. Exterior Painting 

25. Interior Paintin,g 

26, Wallpaper/Paneling -0-
27, Cabinets/Hard ware 

28. Lino.(file Vinyl I _c;l)l}, ~-

29. Plumbing Finish 

30, Exterior & Garage Doors 

31. El8ctrical Finish 

3 2. Carpets 

33, Hardwood Floors 

34. Interior Doors(rrir'n 

35. Finish Labor 

36, Finish Hardware Jooo.~ 
37. Appliances 

38. Decks 

39, Concrete Steps, Patio, 

40. Clean Up 

41. Landscaping 

42 . 

43. Y{loPb"fl..iY 
44 , 

75CO.~ 
46 , 

4 7 . 

48 , 

49 . 

50 . 

51 . 

52. 

53. Overhead & Profit 

54, Sales Tax 

55, Sales Commission 

56 . 

57, ~l PD~ kn?i) 

60 . 

61. 

62 . 

63 . 

TOTAL COSTS & PRO~IT /47_, ~35 
) 

4 7 50 102/00) 

LEGAL 

s?oao, <;! s~"':;)1'f~Fr -;0/000."" La+,J 

JC ,-r,,·1. 77 

//1)/),,? 

12 (;(}, fc9 

31 Of), .., 

/bt> 
., r..,o 

/4 DO, ..c 

I _c;;oo, ,;-

J om, c,:-

j'!/JN'si?-:tei1P1¥*-1:1.l'fc@fMM -~Mi1~P..¥.t~ 1';!;~~~,iw. @F.•ill~?.'~i]!~~m; ••.;.r:q~,:t~?d@ 
INSPECTION 

INSPECTION 

INSPECTION 

INSPECTION 

INSPECTION 

FOUNDATION MEASUREMENTS 

I hereby certify that the above costs , accurately represent all costs to complete 
impro vements as expressed by the attached plotplan, plans and specifications. 

BUILDER'S SIGNATURE jDATE 

BORROWER'S SIGNATURE DATE 

', 
BORROWER'S SIGNATURE DAH 



Enclosure C-6
Page 167

Warrior House Bid Sheet 

Plans/ Arch/Eng 0 
Permits 2315 
Temp Power 420 
Footings/ Foundation 5600 
Framing Material 15000 
Trusses 4600 
Framing Labor 0 
Roofing 4300 
Windows/ sliders 3100 
Plumbing rough 1100 
Elect. Rough 3000 
Grage floor 1200 
Siding 4500 
HVAC 4000 
Insulation 3100 
Drywall tape and Text 4100 
Sewer/septic 160 
Water hook up 260 
Gutters/down spouts 1400 
Exterior Paint 3200 
Interior paint 2000 
Cabinets/ hardwear 5400 
Lino/Tile 1500 
Plumbing finish 2100 
Exterior doors GD 1200 
Elect. Finish 2000 
Carpets 2600 
hardwood laminate 3200 
Interior doors and trim 3100 
Finish Hardwear 1000 
Appliances 4500 
Decks 2100 
Concrete patio steps 2600 
Property 45480 
Contingency 7500 
Total cost 147635 



Enclosure C-6
Page 168

Warrior House Scoring Guide 

1 = not proficient, 2= Basic, 3= Proficient, 4= Exceeds 

Site Prep/ Foundation 

Stake out Property Pins 

Set Batter Boards With Proper Set Backs 

Set Footing Forms and Pier pads 

Pour Footing and Pier pad Concrete 

Set Stem Wall Forms 

Strip Clean and Stack Forms 

Under Floor Framing 

Sill Seal and Mud Seal 

Vapor Barrier placement 

Beam and Stiff Leg placement 

Gussets 

Decking 

Framing 

Snap out Walls in proper Layout 

Lay out exterior walls, build, sheet and stand 

Lay out interior walls, build, sheet and stand 

Lay out and prep for Trusses 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 



Enclosure C-6
Page 169

Roll Trusses 

Sheet Trusses 

Roofing 

Roll out Vapor barrier 

Apply Drip Edge 

Starter Set 5-5/8" setback 

Roof material application Nailing 

Door and Window Installation 

Tuck Vapor Barrier and staple door and window openings 

Screw in and seal Windows 

Screw in and shim doors for proper installation 

Door knob and Dead Bolt Install 

Siding 

Trim out Doors, Window, and corners 

Cut and install Hardi Plank siding 7" reveal 

Caulk and Seal Siding 

Other 

Tool Prep and Maintenance 

Site cleanup 

Safety and PPE 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 

1234 



Enclosure C-6
Page 170

Warrior House 

This is a 3 year plan to get the building of a house for sale to allow the construction program to be a 

self-sustaining program. 

The construction program would produce a house to sell to the general public each year. 

Each house will net after all costs between $ 50,000.00- $ 85,000.00 each year 

After the third house the Construction Program would be self supporting and not need outside or 

additional funds to buy property or construction materials to complete the house. 

Proiect Needs: 

3 pieces of residential property within a 4 mile radius of Lebanon High School. 

Total cost of Properties ................................ $ 148,000.00 

Construction Costs for each house ............. $ 300,000.00 

Tools, supplies and Support ........................ $ 48,000.00 

--------------------------

Total Needed $ 496,000.00 

What Students will learn: 



Enclosure C-6
Page 171

Students in the Warrior House Program will learn the step by step construction 

of a home. They will also learn the pre build site prep, infrastructure, and permit 

requirements of building a home. Upon the completion of the house, the students 

will be actively involved in the marketing and selling of the house as well. 

Infrastructure: 

What services must be made available to a property line in order to construct a 

home? The services needed to build a home are water, sewer, power, cable, 

telephone, optional is gas. 

Site Preparation: 

How must the site be prepared to be able to build a house? 

The site must be staked to accurately locate the property pins thus giving the 

exact property lines. Set back requirements will be calculated and the push out 

will be performed. All utility trenches will be dug and service conduits run to 

location of the eventual foundation. Access and road curb and gutter cuts made 

and approach prepped for concrete. 

Plan submission and permits: 

Once the Plans from the Lebanon High School drafting department are 

produced and approved, three sets are taken to the City of Lebanon building 

Department. House plan square footage will be between 1200 and 1500 square 

feet. After the plans are reviewed and permits are issued the house will be ready 

to be built. 

Foundation Construction: 
With the Building Permits in hand, the footings can be formed and a footing 

and set back inspection can be requested. Once the Footing and setback 

inspection is done then the concrete (#3500 psi@ 30 days) can be poured. The 

stem wall forms can then be set upon the green footings and a stem wall 



Enclosure C-6
Page 172

inspection can be requested. The stem wall inspection approval will allow the 

stem walls to be poured. (#3500psi @ 30 days) Pier pads and or strip footings will 

be poured during the footings and stem wall pours. Forms will be removed and 

striped oiled and stored for next job. 

Under Floor Framing: 

Under floor framing will be done at this point. 6 mil. Black plastic vapor barrier 

will be rolled over the pier pads and exposed ground the Post and beam will be 

installed. Some applications will be TGI joists ( engineered lumber) as an 

alternative to Post and Beam construction. 

The sub contracted plumbers will do the under floor plumbing and the Heating, 

Ventilating and Air Conditioning subcontractor will install the HVAC supply lines, 

under floor plumbing, heating and framing inspections will all be done at this 

point. Students will be able to work with the subcontractors to see how those 

professions are essential to the construction industry and gain exposure to see if 

it would be an interest area. 

The under floor would be insulated to code and the decking ( sub floor) would 

be installed. 

Wall Framing: 

The walls would be framed to code using a path one insulation code. ( 2x6 

exterior and 2x4 interior) Prepare for the engineered trusses. Once the Trusses 

are in place, the trusses would be sheathed and prepped for roofing. 

Roofing and Services: 

The vapor barrier and asphalt shingles would be installed. The rough in 

plumbing system, HVAC system, electrical system would be installed and 

inspected alone with the framing inspection. 

Insulation: 



Enclosure C-6
Page 173

The successful inspections allow the insulation subcontractor to insulate the 

house to code. This is the prep to drywall. 

Drywall: 

The Lebanon High School construction program will hang the drywall in the 

Warrior House. A drywall subcontractor will do the essential tape and mudding of 

the screws and joints, with the help of the construction students. 

Siding and Exterior Trim: 

The students will Trim the exterior of the house and apply siding. The siding will 

then be prepped for caulk and painted a three color scheme. 

Paint and Finish Prep: 

The construction students will then prime and paint the drywall and prep for 

interior finish. Interior doors and trim will be installed and the prebuilt cabinets 

will be installed and hung. 

Interior Floor coverings: 

The floor covering subcontractor will install the linoleum and or tile in 

bathrooms, kitchen and utility rooms with the help of students. Then final service 

can be set in place. Finish plumbing, HVAC, and electrical can be done. 

Touch up and walk through: 

The end of the building process is the walk through and touch ups to any issue 

areas that may need attention. After this is done we have the carpets installed 

after carpet very little foot traffic is allowed in the house before it is plastic 

wrapped and protected. Then final walk through and touch up. 

Marketing and Sales on House: 



Enclosure C-6
Page 174

The students will be introduced to the sales of houses and the marketing 

process that is involved. They will be exposed to house openings and customer 

purchases. 

Additional Student Learning: 

Students will learn construction code. This will require reading for 

understanding and be able to apply that knowledge. They will need to 

be able to write so that other students can understand directions and 

ideas. 

Each class will have a Superintendent, 3 or 4 Foreman and 

Construction Crew Workers. Each of these jobs will be applied for with 

a letter of application, and an interview process. They will work 

together in groups following instruction and directions from one 

another to achieve both short term and long term goals. There will be a 

component of self and group evaluation. 

Each Student will also have a portfolio assessment in which they will 

document all of their completions and works of the Oregon Skill Sets. 

This portfolio will have pictures, work samples and skill set check offs. 

The students will use Math, Geometry, Algebra and Trigonometry to 

figure out quantities, areas, volumes, ratios, square, level, slopes, rises, 

densities, of materials throughout the building processes of the house. 

Safety: 



Enclosure C-6
Page 175

Each student will earn an OSHA 10 safety certification that can be used in the 

job market and make them more employable than people without that 

certification. 

They will also have the building experience to get them ready for the next step in 

their educational process. For some it will be community college as Lebanon 

Construction is articulated with Portland Community College. Others it will be a 

summer job to help pay for a four year college, or internships. 

Student Participation: 

The class sizes for this project will be 25 students in a two hour block class. 

There will be two morning classes of this size that will work directly on the house. 

There will be two General construction classes in the afternoon that will be from 

25 to 32 students each and these are one hour classes that will be introductory 

level preparing students to be in the Construction 1 and 2 classes. The General 

Construction classes will travel on occasion to the job site to see and experience 

the actual construction of a house. It will be a great learning incentive for General 

Construction students. 

The Warrior House will impact approximately 100 to 115 students every day. 

The program as it is designed will be for a three year cycle building completing 

one house for sale each year to become self-supporting and not need any outside 

funding. Then it will impact hundreds of students for years to come. 

Projected Financial Outcomes: 

Each house will cost approximately$ 100,000.00 to build and get ready to sell. 

The house will then sell for approximately$ 140,000.00 to$ 165,000.00. At the 

end of the sale, the profits will go back into the Construction Program to build the 

next years Warrior House. At the end of the three year program cycle, the 

Warrior House Construction Program at Lebanon High School will have 

conservatively$ 135,000.00 dollars and more likely up to$ 175,000.00 to build 

the following houses. 



Enclosure C-6
Page 176

Win Win Situation: 

The Lebanon High School Construction Program could be in an amazing 

partnership with the Lebanon community School District in producing a learning 

situation for students to build houses for profit. This real life project will impact 

hundreds of students as well an impact the community in a very positive way. 

This project will allow students to get a head start on a learning path and allow 

them to utilize Math, Reading and Writing in real world applications. They will 

also gain valuable soft skills in dealing with the public in a marketing and sales 

environment. 

The Warrior House program would be a huge "Win" for the students of 

Lebanon High School. It would be a "Win "for the Lebanon Community, and also a 

"Win" for the Lebanon Community School District in that they would be 

supporting students, and the City of Lebanon. Ultimately, it would be a "Win" for 

society. 



 H:\Board Meetings\Board Blurbs 3-9-17.docx
 
  

Business Report 
By: Linda Darling, Business Director 

March 9, 2017 
 

I will not be in attendance at the March 9th Board meeting, as I’m on a family vacation until March 16th.  If 
you have any questions or concerns please don’t hesitate to contact me.  I will be providing the Board with 
updated information on State School Fund (SSF) for 2016-2017 and 2017-2018.  That information will not 
be released until March 3rd or later, but I will have it for you at the Board meeting (Nichole will distribute it 
to you). 
 
Financial Report: (enclosure D-1) 
The 2016-2017 Financial Board report included in this Board packet reflects all of revenue and expenditures 
for 2015-2016 through 2016-2017, along with the budgeted and spent or encumbered amounts for 2016-
2017.  The amounts in 2016-2017 salaries and benefits will change some throughout the year as staffing 
changes occur. The projected Ending Fund Balance (EFB) for 2016-2017 is $2,491,480.  This is a slight 
decrease from February’s Financial Report of $2,572,274. There are many factors that impact this projected 
EFB, including staffing changes, contract conditions, and items required for district operations.  
 
P-card Update:  
The District implemented using P-Cards (Procurement Cards, like controlled credit cards) in March 2012.  
The program was implemented with departments coming on throughout the first six months.   To be eligible 
for a rebate $500,000 or more in transactions had to occur within the calendar year.  The table below reflects 
the net amount processed through the P-card for each year, the amount that the district received back 
(rebate), the average amount per transaction. Dividing the amount by the average spend reflects the potential 
number of checks we would have had to process. The P-card process also saves staff time (processing 
checks, bank reconciliation, postage costs), and reduces the District’s liability for fraud. There was a $2,984 
increase in our rebate amount from prior year.  

P-Card History    

Calendar Yr  Amount   Rebate  
Avg 

Spend 
 # of Checks Potentially 
Processed  

2012 $512,271 $8,812 $328       1,562  
2013 $752,290 $11,915 $260       2,896  
2014 $1,156,485 $17,697 $301       3,846  
2015 $1,198,935 $18,006 $289       4,152  
2016 $1,354,157 $20,990 $272       4,982  
Total $4,974,139 $77,420 $290     17,438  

  
Overall this is a great program that creates efficiencies.  
 
Disposal of Obsolete Equipment:  
The following pieces of equipment have been evaluated to be a risk to the program: 

• Cutting torch track, 9 feet long, with two motorized torch carriers 
o Victor Model 100 with a Victor torch 
o Airco No. 10 Radiograph with an unknown brand of torch 

• Cadillac 17” X 33” lathe 
The High School Welding Program will post this equipment through public notice in the newspaper, process 
sealed bids, and execute sale of equipment.  The money from the sale of these will go back to the Welding 
Program 
 
  

Page 177



 H:\Board Meetings\Board Blurbs 3-9-17.docx
 
  

Construction Funding: 
The District has received $80,000 from the sale of property to the City of Lebanon.  The Board will be 
presented information on a Construction Course proposal for these funds.  The following are the Funds that 
were setup during 2016-2017 Budgeting: 

• Fund 292 CTE Local Fund, Career & Technical Education: The CTE (Career & Technical Education) 
Local Fund is designed to provide the students of Lebanon High School improved Culinary Arts and 
Welding Vocational Programs by supplying much needed state of the art classroom improvements 
and equipment. The funding will be from the sale of district land assets. At the time of the 2016-2017 
budget development, the Board has not made a decision regarding sale of any land assets. This fund 
has been established in the event they decide to proceed. 

• Fund 530 Vocational House Fund: The Vocational House Fund is designed as an enterprise fund. The 
District will purchase land to provide the students of Lebanon High School an opportunity through 
the Rough Carpentry / Construction Vocational Program to build a home. Once completed, the home 
will be sold, providing funding for additional homes to be built. The funding source will be from the 
sale of district land assets. At the time of the 2016-2017 budget development, the Board has not made 
a decision regarding sale of any land assets. This fund has been established in the event they decide to 
proceed. 

Fund 530 is considered an Enterprise Fund, therefore to use this we have to make money that is reinvested in 
the program.  If the construction proposal does not include building and selling for a profit, then Fund 292 
will need to be used.  The Board would just need to revise the definition for the use of that fund.  Currently 
the $80,000 has been deposited into Fund 530; if the Board decides to use Fund 292, a transfer of the funds 
can be done easily.    
 
Oregon Economic and Revenue Forecast: 
The information provided by OSBA (Oregon School Board Association) on the March 2016 Oregon 
Economic and Revenue Forecast, is in my opinion, a nice summary, and is shown below: 
State revenue forecast delivers good news but not too good 
February 24, 2017 

  

The Oregon revenue forecast is up almost $200 million from the December forecast, state economist Mark McMullen told the 
Senate Finance and Revenue and the House Revenue committees this week. 

Page 178

2016 
$52 800 

2017 
$54;900 

EOUCATJONAL 
SERVICES 

EMPLOYMENT 

2016 
35,800 

201'7 
36,300 

SCI-IOOL AGE <-•!>-111 
POPULATION 

GROWTH! 

2016 
635,555 

201'7 
638,384 

LOCAL SCHOOL 
RE.VENUE 

(p,OJ:*'rr 111•4"1.. school~, 1,mMo 

MARCH FORECAST 
201!M7 

$3.68 BILLION 

MARCH FORECAST 
2017-1,9 

$3.96 BILLION 

GENE~ALANO 
LOTTE RY FLIN D 

REVENUE 

DECEMBER FORECAST 
$20.8 Bl LLION 

Milli!C H FORE:CAST 
$21 BILLION 

NCREASE IIN 
AVAILABLE BUDGET 
$195 MILLION 

The Ecooomu:; Analysis Office releases a r,eport four times ye r. The ne)(t forecast wm be released May 16. 
f- , roir rf"' r ' f- ,,. ' 



 H:\Board Meetings\Board Blurbs 3-9-17.docx
 
  

Oregon’s continued and sustainable growth is good news, but this uptick in revenue also carries a down side for government 
budgeting: The potential personal income kicker (tax rebate) would be activated if the personal income tax collections total at least 2 
percent more than projections made at the beginning of the two-year budget cycle. The state would need to generate an additional 
$265 million over the expected revenues before July 1 to trigger the kicker. 

McMullen said revenue remains in the economic “sweet spot”: growing faster than expected but not so fast as to force a kicker 
payback to taxpayers. Personal income is down slightly from the end of session 2015 forecast, but corporate taxes have grown 
enough to force an estimated $36.2 million corporate kicker for K-12 education in 2017-19. 

“Oregon’s economy is strong,” said Senate President Peter Courtney. “Our revenues are up, but we still have hard work ahead. Our 
budget isn’t balanced. We’re going to have to make some cuts. We’re going to have to raise some revenue. Both are tough; both 
have to get done if we are going to meet the needs of Oregon and her people.” 

All these figures could change depending on how the economy performs between now and the next revenue forecast in May. Until 
then, lawmakers will continue to build the biennial budget for 2017-19, including the appropriation for the State School Fund. 

Legislative leaders said the revenue forecast points to the need for revenue reform. 

“Unfortunately, the forecast also highlights how broken our revenue system has become,” said House Majority Leader Jennifer 
Williamson (D-Portland). “Despite today’s good news, we’re still $1.7 billion away from just funding our schools and basic services 
at their current levels.” 

House Speaker Tina Kotek (D-Portland) pointed to Oregon’s ongoing budget problems. 

“Without new revenue, the impacts of our current budget deficit will hit people in every corner of the state with teacher layoffs, 
bigger class sizes, higher tuition costs, the loss of health insurance coverage, or other harmful impacts in their everyday lives,” she 
said. 

- Lori Sattenspiel 
Interim director of legislative services 

Page 179



Page 180



 2016-2017 General Fund Summary Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxOverview 3-9-17

| |
13/14 14/15 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17

Actual Actual Actual | Budget YTD & Enc Balance | Project

General Fund - Revenue   | | 2/27/2017
| |

SSF Formula 33,010,958 34,926,096 36,112,627 | 36,450,825 28,975,387  7,475,438     | 37,120,600  
SSF Adjustment 354,709      48,134        (330,463)     | -              -              -               | (400,000)     
Interest 55,090        62,596        91,245        | 70,000        72,038         (2,038)          | 92,000         
Third Party Billing 35,680        25,179        45,178        | 50,000        85,845         (35,845)        | 100,000       
TMR 189,021      154,930      149,514      | 175,000      208,252       (33,252)        | 208,200       
JROTC 44,877        64,220        66,034        | 65,000        44,968         20,032          | 66,000         
Other 493,650      379,017      297,128      | 450,000      190,622       259,378        | 374,000       
Interfund Transfer 680,000      60,000        60,000        | 60,000        37,463         22,537          | 60,000         
BFB 1,065,336   3,162,455   3,932,387   | 2,950,000   3,024,733    (74,733)        | 3,025,000    

Total 35,929,322 38,882,628 40,423,650 | 40,270,825 32,639,310  7,631,515     | 40,645,800  

======== ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== | ========

| |
General Fund - Expenses | |

| |
Salaries 15,946,123 16,263,399 17,884,343 | 18,652,514 18,197,642  454,872        | 18,878,500  
Benefits 9,581,618   10,020,660 10,645,144 | 11,477,648 10,678,433  799,215        | 10,925,420  
P. Services 4,781,674   5,112,768   5,027,111   | 4,805,057   3,073,491    1,731,566     | 4,394,900    
Supplies 1,123,636   1,477,643   1,380,753   | 1,708,226   1,095,193    613,033        | 1,375,400    
Capital Outlay -              6,779          20,047        | 50,000        36,058         13,942          | 50,000         
Other Objects 262,806      308,993      286,294      | 337,380      342,551       (5,171)          | 365,100       
Transfers 902,369      1,760,000   2,155,225   | 2,240,000   2,065,000    175,000        | 2,165,000    
Contingency -              -              -              | 1,000,000   -              1,000,000     | -              

Total 32,598,226 34,950,241 37,398,917 | 40,270,825 35,488,368  4,782,457     | 38,154,320  

======== ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== | ========

 Projected Ending Fund Balance 2,491,480   

Page 181



 2016-2017 General Fund Revenue Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxRevenue 3-9-17

13/14 14/15 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17

 Actual Actual Actual | Budget YTD Balance | Project

  | | 2/27/2017| |

SSF Formula | |

Taxes 7,903,432   8,234,812    8,533,160    | 8,675,000    8,319,053    355,947        | 8,677,600    
Federal Forest Fees 270,219      264,679       205,708       | 150,000       -              150,000        | 150,000       
Common School 390,784      409,884       492,013       | 416,000       251,157       164,843        | 502,000       
State Timber 210,996      405,152       181,382       | 100,000       60,543         39,457          | 181,000       
School Support Fund 24,235,526 25,578,283  26,623,971  | 27,109,825  20,344,634  6,765,191     | 27,534,000  
Adjustments to SSF Payments  | |

    Adj for 05/06 payments -              -              -              | -              -              -                | -              
    Adj for HC Disability Grant 44,585        33,286         76,394         | -              -              -                | 76,000         
    Adj for 11/12 payment -              -              -              | -              -              -                | -              
    Adj for 12/13 payment 310,123      -              -              | -              -              -                | -              
    Adj for 13/14 payment -              48,134         -              | -              -              -                | -              
    Adj for 14/15 payment -              -              (330,463)     | -              -              -                | -              
    Adj for 15/16 payment -              -              -              | -              -              -                | (400,000)     

Total SSF Formula 33,365,667 34,974,231  35,782,164  | 36,450,825  28,975,387  7,475,438     | 36,720,600  
| -                |

Interest of Investments 55,090        62,596         91,245         | 70,000         72,038         (2,038)           | 92,000         
| |

Third Party billing - Medicaid 35,680        25,179         45,178         | 50,000         85,845         (35,845)         | 100,000       
| |

TMR 189,021      154,930       149,514       | 175,000       208,252       (33,252)         | 208,200       
| |

JROTC reimbursement 44,877        64,220         66,034         | 65,000         44,968         20,032          | 66,000         
| |

Other | |

Rental Fees 24,989        27,828         10,474         | 10,000         4,257           5,743            | 7,000           
Fees Charged to Grants -              -              800              | 50,000         -              50,000          | -              
Miscellaneous 396,771      282,468       202,944       | 310,000       109,518       200,482        | 290,000       
E-Rate reimbursement 71,891        68,721         82,910         | 80,000         76,847         3,153            | 77,000         

| |

Interfund Transfer - Athletics 680,000      60,000         60,000         | 60,000         37,463         22,537          | 60,000         
| |

Beginning Fund Balance 1,065,336   3,162,455    3,932,387    | 2,950,000    3,024,733    (74,733)         | 3,025,000    
| -                |

Total 35,929,322 38,882,628  40,423,650  | 40,270,825  32,639,310  7,631,515     | 40,645,800  
======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Page 182



 2016-2017 General Fund Expenditure Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxExpenses 3-9-17

  2/27/2017
13/14 14/15 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17

Obj Description Actual Actual Actual | Budget YTD Encumb Balance | Project

| |

111       Certified salaries 9,312,212   9,311,147   10,161,648 | 10,626,822 5,443,238   5,375,177   (191,593)     | 10,848,000  
112       Classified salaries 3,821,771   4,164,521   4,545,055   | 4,967,526   2,659,665   2,116,505   191,356      | 4,784,000    
113       Administrative salaries 1,409,054   1,464,907   1,648,330   | 1,612,788   1,080,743   540,371      (8,326)         | 1,621,000    
114       Managerial - classified 92,856        94,714        178,755      | 187,684      125,198      62,599        (113)            | 188,000       
116       Retirement stipends 99,065        76,123        51,134        | 44,000        24,568        11,053        8,379          | 41,000         
118       Retirement Support Program 159,600      -              -              | -              -              -              -              | -              
119       Confidential salaries 125,872      125,785      84,504        | 95,139        84,044        47,654        (36,559)       | 132,000       
121       Certified subs 364,590      373,350      432,293      | 382,854      218,772      -              164,082      | 479,000       
122       Classified subs 147,575      148,818      155,004      | 162,800      76,071        -              86,729        | 148,000       
123       Temp certified 61,461        62,030        73,949        | 53,500        49,117        -              4,383          | 102,000       
124       Temp classified 3,775          982             -              | 500             -              -              500             | -              
127       Student helpers salaries 12,466        11,768        7,895          | 6,000          2,148          -              3,852          | 2,000           
132       Compensation time 19,026        23,861        25,767        | 32,650        3,628          -              29,022        | 27,500         
133       Extra duty 149,434      254,381      324,897      | 324,201      175,704      21,302        127,195      | 325,000       
134       Classified extra hrs 123,909      142,975      185,048      | 135,000      78,553        -              56,447        | 170,000       
135       Vacation Payoff 17,384        4,377          6,938          | 15,650        -              -              15,650        | 7,000           
136       Mentor teacher pay 1,568          990             609             | -              -              -              -              | 1,000           
137       Personal Leave Payout 22,057        75               -              | -              -              -              -              | -              
138       Department Head Extra Duty 2,122          2,159          1,613          | 4,000          613             -              3,388          | 1,500           
142       Taxable Meal Reimbursement 328             436             903             | 1,400          919             -              481             | 1,500           

Total Salaries 15,946,123 16,263,399 17,884,343 | 18,652,514 10,022,981 8,174,662 454,872 | 18,878,500

| -              |

210       PERS 3,955,693   3,976,407   4,187,401   | 4,682,670   2,329,955   1,934,197   418,518      | 4,362,200    
220       Social Security 1,183,575   1,207,537   1,328,140   | 1,391,886   737,613      598,903      55,370        | 1,388,600    
231       Worker's Comp 119,163      136,822      173,370      | 219,075      121,397      84,435        13,243        | 210,500       
241       Employee Ins - Admin  177,948      212,862      | 220,380      139,582      69,980        10,819        | 209,000       
242       Employee Ins - Certified 2,146,033   2,307,416   2,328,554   | 2,432,267   1,183,912   1,180,959   67,396        | 2,372,000    
243       Employee Ins - Classified 1,721,374   1,874,827   2,137,321   | 2,249,129   1,137,614   974,726      136,789      | 2,133,000    
244       Employee Ins - Other 20,636        20,700        7,731          | 25,820        15,923        11,201        (1,304)         | 27,120         
245       Employee Ins - Retired 389,149      276,090      228,774      | 230,000      135,953      -              94,047        | 200,000       
247       TSA 45,996        42,912        40,991        | 26,421        18,082        4,000          4,339          | 23,000         

Total Benefits 9,581,618 10,020,660 10,645,144 | 11,477,648 5,820,032 4,858,401 799,215 | 10,925,420

-              |  |

Page 183



 2016-2017 General Fund Expenditure Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxExpenses 3-9-17

  2/27/2017
13/14 14/15 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17

Obj Description Actual Actual Actual | Budget YTD Encumb Balance | Project

311       Instructional Services 69,272        152,856      157,581      | 180,800      49,427        60,065        71,308        | 160,000       
312       Instr Prog Improve Service 18,733        43,468        36,748        | 20,000        21,224        -              (1,224)         | 35,000         
319       Other Instr-Prof-Tech SVCS 14,977        21,870        9,745          | 15,000        12,400        950             1,650          | 15,500         
322       Repairs & Maintenance 101,489      163,270      168,482      | 108,517      90,934        34,182        (16,599)       | 166,000       
323       Radio Service -              -              7,767          | -              31,906        6,957          (38,863)       | 39,000         
324       Rentals 121,204      135,308      104,777      | 140,350      65,836        14,526        59,988        | 113,000       
325       Electricity 440,338      467,896      473,758      | 472,100      297,295      -              174,805      | 473,800       
326       Fuel 187,486      177,759      187,899      | 236,000      88,958        -              147,042      | 187,900       
327       Water & Sewer 112,986      139,255      121,239      | 145,900      91,925        -              53,975        | 130,200       
328       Garbage 77,676        86,324        96,811        | 95,600        45,550        -              50,050        | 96,800         
329       Other Property Services 420             13,001        19,246        | 11,400        23,528        1,850          (13,978)       | 30,000         
330       Reimb. Student Transportation 4,204          6,950          -              | 8,800          239             -              8,561          | 15,000         
340       Travel 65,317        114,592      140,225      | 136,690      97,697        2,943          36,050        | 241,000       
343       Travel - Student - Out of Dist. 1,665          -              -              | 4,150          -              -              4,150          | -              
346       Meals/Transportation 148             104             48               | 500             99               -              401             | 200              
348       Staff Tuition 30,645        49,577        44,768        | 40,000        42,624        -              (2,624)         | 55,000         
351       Telephone 67,513        82,642        70,529        | 71,300        21,083        1,898          48,319        | 40,000         
353       Postage 25,894        23,607        21,909        | 28,650        8,156          -              20,494        | 23,800         
354       Advertising 1,874          4,416          3,551          | 4,700          2,290          -              2,410          | 3,300           
355       Printing & Binding 13,897        68,861        48,223        | 82,100        48,446        476             33,179        | 52,000         
360       Charter School Payments 1,954,971   2,064,403   1,961,788   | 2,085,000   1,460,723   -              624,277      | 1,800,000    
371       Tuitions Payments to Other Dist. 37,250        40,570        29,701        | 125,000      29,536        -              95,464        | 30,000         
373       Tuition Pay Private School -              -              -              | 5,000          -              -              5,000          | -              
374       Other Tuition 782,257      605,954      625,503      | 257,000      56,281        -              200,719      | 200,000       
381       Audit Services 27,150        27,650        25,150        | 30,000        17,700        -              12,300        | 30,000         
382       Legal Services 9,011          2,028          5,288          | 25,000        1,563          -              23,437        | 5,400           
384       Negotiation Services 14,344        5,934          13,784        | 10,000        4,329          -              5,671          | 11,400         
386       Data Processing SVCS 57,261        59,787        76,794        | 81,300        48,352        -              32,948        | 76,800         
388       Election Services -              4,565          -              | 10,000        -              -              10,000        | 8,500           
389       Other Non_instr Pro/Tech 510,398      515,889      539,114      | 330,600      160,597      94,266        75,737        | 318,700       
391       Physical Exams - Drivers 2,175          2,380          3,168          | 3,700          2,225          1,575          (100)            | 3,800           
392       Drug Tests Drivers 1,110          1,110          635             | 3,000          675             1,325          1,000          | 1,000           
393       Child Care Services 22,000        22,000        22,000        | 25,000        13,200        8,800          3,000          | 22,000         
394       Sub calling service 5,536          5,559          7,489          | 8,000          6,464          -              1,536          | 6,500           
396       Criminal History checks 2,332          2,546          2,928          | 2,900          2,414          -              486             | 2,900           
398       Fingerprinting 138             639             462             | 1,000          -              -              1,000          | 400              

Total P. Services 4,781,674 5,112,768 5,027,111 | 4,805,057 2,843,679 229,812 1,731,566 | 4,394,900

Page 184



 2016-2017 General Fund Expenditure Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxExpenses 3-9-17

  2/27/2017
13/14 14/15 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17

Obj Description Actual Actual Actual | Budget YTD Encumb Balance | Project

|  |

406       Gas Oil & Lubricants 189,904      152,805      103,868      | 211,000      58,283        103,539      49,178        | 110,000       
410       Supplies & Materials 356,317      457,671      419,096      | 534,498      362,744      35,938        135,815      | 458,000       
413       Vehicle repair parts 54,783        50,201        48,980        | 63,000        27,752        17,460        17,788        | 51,300         
414       Transportation operations 5,262          5,674          6,060          | 5,300          4,298          1,479          (478)            | 5,700           
420       Textbooks 173,653      240,685      131,379      | 195,300      66,179        2,861          126,259      | 84,000         
430       Library Books 6,636          9,934          8,588          | 11,200        2,151          -              9,049          | 8,400           
440       Periodicals 3,753          6,012          1,937          | 4,920          4,713          -              207             | 6,000           
460       Equipment under 5K 122,132      125,632      212,514      | 233,322      113,112      779             119,431      | 213,000       
470       Computer software 139,153      173,513      195,888      | 241,775      136,380      -              105,395      | 185,000       
480       Computer hardware 72,041        255,516      252,444      | 207,911      157,524      -              50,387        | 254,000       

Total Supplies & Materials 1,123,636 1,477,643 1,380,753 | 1,708,226 933,136 162,057 613,033 | 1,375,400

|  |

540       Equipment -              6,779          20,047        | 50,000        36,058        -              13,942        | 50,000         
Total Capital Outlay -              6,779 20,047 | 50,000 36,058 0 13,942 | 50,000

|  |

621       Regular Interest -              -              -              | 500             -              -              500             | -              
640       Dues & Fees 51,933        92,488        67,655        | 103,080      112,558      309             (9,787)         | 130,000       
650       Insurance & Judgments 210,873      216,456      218,639      | 233,600      229,684      -              3,916          | 235,000       
670       Taxes & Licenses -              49               -              | 200             -              -              200             | 100              

Total Other Objects 262,806 308,993 286,294 | 337,380 342,242 309 (5,171) | 365,100

|  |

710       Transfer - Technology 50,000        175,000      200,000      | 225,000      225,000      -              -              | 225,000       
711       Transfer - Classroom Furniture -              50,000        50,000        | 25,000        25,000        -              -              | 25,000         
712       Transfer - Textbook Adoption 50,000        350,000      350,000      | 300,000      300,000      -              -              | 300,000       
713       Transfer - Capital Improvement 150,000      225,000      250,000      | 250,000      250,000      -              -              | 250,000       
714       Transfer - Track and Turf Fund 100,000      110,000      110,000      | 10,000        10,000        -              -              | 10,000         
715       Transfer - Athletic Fund 336,000      365,000      365,000      | 405,000      405,000      -              -              | 405,000       
716       Transfer - Bus Replacement 150,000      250,000      250,000      | 250,000      250,000      -              -              | 250,000       
717       Transfer - Unemploy Ins 50,000        25,000        15,000        | 25,000        -              -              25,000        | 25,000         
718       PERS Reserve -              150,000      500,000      | 500,000      500,000      -              -              | 500,000       
719       Transfer - Food Service 16,369        50,000        65,225        | 150,000      -              -              150,000      | 75,000         
730       Transfer - Debt Service -              -              -              | 100,000      100,000      -              -              | 100,000       
731       Transfer  - Academic Achievemen -              10,000        -              | -              -              -              -              | -              

Total Transfers 902,369      1,760,000   2,155,225   | 2,240,000   2,065,000   -              175,000      | 2,165,000    

| -              |

810       Reserve/Contingency -              -              -              | 1,000,000   -              -              1,000,000   | -              

 | |

Grand Total 32,598,226 34,950,241 37,398,917 | 40,270,825 22,063,128 13,425,240 4,782,457   | 38,154,320  

========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= ========= =========

Page 185



 2016-2017 All Funds Summary Report

Enclosure: D-1 H:\Board Meetings\2016-2017 Financial Board Reports.xlsxAll Funds 3-9-17

| | 2/27/2017
13/14 14/15 15/16 15/16 | 16/17 2-27-17 2-27-17 2-27-17 | 16/17 16/17

Fund  Description Actual Actual Actual EFB | Adopted Y-T-D Encumb Balance | Proj. Actual Proj. EFB

| Budget |

100  General Fund 32,766,866 34,950,241 37,398,917  | 40,270,825 22,063,128 13,425,240 4,782,457     | 38,154,320   2,491,480  
200  Grant Funds 2,663,753   2,591,884   2,353,551   2,002         | 5,200,500   1,623,620   925,222      2,651,659     | 2,536,000     -             
205  Senate Bill 1149 -              185,000      -              88,329       | 171,500      -              -              171,500        | -                159,000     
212  Academic Achievement 1,500          -              -              18,650       | 28,650        -              -              28,650          | 5,000             13,650       
230  Bus Replacement -              100,735      -              554,882     | 804,900      633,327      -              171,573        | 634,000         175,000     
232  Classroom Furniture -              50,000        40,792        9,208         | 38,000        21,294        3,165          13,541          | 24,500           9,500         
240  Textbook Adoption 107,421      18,550        759,564      973            | 485,000      68,173        6,920          409,908        | 80,000           225,000     
272  Capital Improvments 319,070      284,536      156,950      93,050       | 330,000      134,911      21,466        173,624        | 300,000         43,000       
274  Technology 52,899        124,500      495             270,949     | 496,444      -              489,479      6,965            | 150,000         350,000     
277  Track and Turf Replacement 100,000      100,000      100,000      77,754       | 118,000      -              -              118,000        | -                100,000     
279  Student Activity 593,221      590,053      632,780      483,120     | 1,120,000   427,929      22,024        670,047        | 615,000         500,000     
286  High School Athletics 445,218      445,055      453,152      91,820       | 581,000      369,266      61,602        150,132        | 475,000         100,000     
292  CTE Local Fund -              -              -              -            | 100,000      -              -              100,000        | -                -             
296  Nutrition Services 1,683,116   1,596,163   1,615,906   340,043     | 2,020,907   915,521      534,979      570,406        | 1,630,000     400,000     
299  PERS Reserve 630,000      -              -              650,000     | 1,150,000   -              -              1,150,000     | -                1,150,000  
300  Debt Service 3,359,330   3,442,481   3,528,481   65,481       | 3,618,482   999,241      -              2,619,241     | 3,618,500     10,000       
310  Debt Service / SB 1149 5,151          -              -              -            | -              -              -              -                | -                -             
311  2011 Non-Bonded Debt 223,547      223,547      223,547      119,551     | 349,715      48,607        -              301,108        | 223,547         86,000       
400  Capital Projects -              -              -              | -              -              -              -                |

411  Capital Projects - Bond # 2 -              -              -              | -              -              -              -                |

530  Vocational House Fund -              -              -              -            | 250,000      -              -              250,000        | -                80,000       
601  Unemployment 37,166        37,539        10,646        95,630       | 120,000      25,001        -              94,999          | 45,000           100,000     

 | |

 Grand Total 42,988,258 44,740,285 47,274,779 2,961,442 | 57,253,923 27,330,017 15,490,096 14,433,810   | 48,490,867   5,992,630  

======== ======== ======== ======== | ======== ======== ======== ======== | ======== ========

Page 186



MEMORANDUM 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Rob Hess, Superintendent 

Date: March 2, 2017 

Re: 360-degree Evaluation Survey 

I have contacted Renee Sessler from OSBA to assist with the development of a custom 360 
evaluation survey designed for Lebanon. There are several different ways this survey can be 
designed. Over the next few weeks, she would like to contact each board member individually to get 
their thoughts about the design and collect any questions you would like to be on the survey. After 
receiving input, she will bring a draft of the survey to the April 27th board meeting for board 
approval. Upon approval, the survey will be sent during the month of May. Results will be complied 
and presented to the board at the June meeting. Results will be used for the next board to inform 
goal setting in the fall of 2017 and for my evaluation in the spring of 2018. 

In her interviews with board members Renee will be seeking to find consensus on the following 
things: 

1) Purpose and Content of the survey: Is the survey specific only to evaluating the work of the
superintendent or is it a combination of the superintendent’s performance, district performance,
building performance, board performance? Should the survey address topics that pertain to the 2020
Vision?

2) Scope of the survey: Broad or Narrow? In other words, does the board only want feedback from
specific people who are invited to participate in the survey or do they want it open to anyone
anonymously, or do they want it open to anyone provided they use their name or do they want it to
be anonymous with an option to leave a name?

3) Demographics of the survey: Does the board want questions tailored to a person’s identified
demographic (parent, student, teacher, classified, admin, community member) or just one set of
questions? If the questions are tailored to groups, what groups will be surveyed?

4) Length of the survey: Does the board want a relatively short survey that doesn’t take too much
time or do they want a more extensive survey that takes more time?

5) Open Ended Questions: Does the board want open ended questions on the survey?

Enclosure E-1
Page 187

•••• • Pursuin Excellence 

Community Schools 



LEBANON COMMUNITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING 

MINUTES 
February 9, 2017 - 6:00 PM 

Hamilton Creek School, 32135 Berlin Road, Lebanon, Oregon 97355 

A regular School Board Meeting was held at Hamilton Creek School on February 9, 2017. Those present included: 

Richard Borden, Director Rob Hess, Superintendent 
Jerry Williams, Director Bo Yates, Assistant Superintendent 
Russ McUne, Director  Jennifer Meckley, Director of Human Resources 
Mike Martin, Director   Linda Darling, Business Director 
Kellie Weber, Director 

Minutes recorded by Nicole Hundley, Executive Secretary. 

AUDIENCE COMMENTS 

Chair Russ McUne welcomed audience comments. 

Ryan Noss spoke in support of naming the Pioneer School Library in honor of his brother, Sergeant First Class 
Scot R. Noss. He noted that the Noss family supports the proposal made by Patrick Quinn. Scot was a long time 
student in the Lebanon Community School District, and as an avid reader it is fitting to name the library after him. 
Ryan also spoke to the culture of Pioneer School in their support of veterans. 

Patrick Quinn spoke in support of naming the Pioneer School Library in honor of Sergeant First Class Scot R. 
Noss. He discussed Scot’s military service and injury. He noted that a plaque regarding the naming would be 
provided by a donor, along with a scrapbook from the family to educate students on Scot and his service. 

Eric Frazier discussed a recent survey he conducted of Lebanon Community School District staff. He noted that 
262 employees participated, and while there were several positives, he found themes of areas of improvement to be 
attendance, behavior/accountability, and leadership concerns. He said several great things that were happening in 
the district were also noted in the surveys. The results will soon be released and he hopes they will result in positive 
change. 

Delane Overton discussed the need for clear expectations and guidelines for our students, especially as it relates to 
consistency and consequences. He stated that the District’s efforts could lead to enabling if higher expectations are 
not set. He discussed the different types of administrators: leaders and transformational leaders. 

Patty Allydice spoke about the size of the audience, stating that they were questioning the Board’s actions. She 
discussed Superintendent Hess’ evaluation, comparing it to a “nearly meets” standard, and disagreed with having a 
contract renewal. She also disagreed with the removal of the residency component. She stated her support of a 
community wide survey. She discussed the contract buy-out of the previous superintendent. 

Cathy Osborne spoke to support Principal Tonya Cairo and Superintendent Rob Hess. She stated that contrary to 
the previous speaker’s thoughts, several audience members were there in support of the District and their leaders 
and not because there is a problem. 

Anna Parker spoke about her concerns regarding the negative letter and gossip circulating in the District. She 
discussed the need to check facts and not spread untruths and to focus on supporting the success of our students. 
She discussed the work of Principal Tonya Cairo to make improvements at Pioneer School. She discussed 
Superintendent Rob Hess and his leadership. 

Enclosure F-1
Page 188



Marc Thielman, Superintendent of Alsea School District, spoke regarding his work with Superintendent Rob Hess. 
He discussed the value of Rob Hess’ work at the state level and the improvements he has brought to the District. 
He discussed how much Lebanon is able to support with very finite resources. He and Rob Hess have been 
working at the state level to increase funding and make positive changes to impact all schools in Oregon. He 
provided a letter that was sent to the capital in order to create impactful changes for the betterment of public 
education. He also discussed the innovation bill and Rob Hess’ work to support it. Lebanon has a tremendous track 
record of doing a lot with very little, and he stressed the importance of staying focused on this effort. 
 
Sara Hartnim read an anonymous letter from another student regarding the high school’s lack of support for the 
student to graduate with his diploma and their pressure to obtain a GED instead, including disrespecting the 
student and discouraging the student from trying to graduate. 
 
Brooklyn Giles spoke about the need to ensure the drama and decisions do not poorly affect students. 
 
Chair Russ McUne paused the audience comments at this time to move on to regular agenda topics. Audience 
comments would be reopened after the Budget Committee Meeting. 
 

GOOD NEWS/COMMUNITY COMMUNICATIONS 
 

1. Report: Hamilton Creek School 
 
Principal Geno Bates presented information on Hamilton Creek’s graduation preparation, attendance, assessment, 
and opportunities.  
 

BUDGET COMMITTEE INTERVIEWS 
 
The three candidates provided background on their experience. There are two three-year positions available. 
 
Jeff Vandiver has two children in the District and has lived in Lebanon his entire life. He wants to be involved in his 
children’s education. He has several community contacts through his employment as a service technician. 
 
Tom Oliver has three children and works for Consumers Power. He was previously a department head for City of 
Lebanon and has significant experience with budgets similar to the District’s. 
 
Todd Gestrin was formerly on the Budget Committee. His children have been through the District schools. He has 
worked in banking for 34 years, managed several budgets, and is on the City of Lebanon budget committee. 
 
Richard Borden made a motion to appoint Jeff Vandiver to the Budget Committee. Kellie Weber seconded the 
motion. The motion carried 4-1 with Mike Martin voting against. 
 
Mike Martin made a motion to appoint Tom Oliver to the Budget Committee. Kellie seconded the motion. The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
1. Policies 
 
The following Policy AR revisions were presented to the Board for information only: Policy ING-AR: Animals in 
District Facilities; Policy JEC-AR(1): Open Enrollment/School Attendance Areas; Policy JEC-AR(2): Lottery 
Procedures; and Policy JEC-AR(3): Application for Open Enrollment. Jennifer Meckley explained that the Policy 
ING-AR: Animals in District Facilities was made more robust in order to better process these types of requests. 
Rob Hess explained that the Policy JEC-ARs regarding Open Enrollment will be looked at each year and this is the 

Enclosure F-1
Page 189



2017-2018 update. He noted that some schools are already at capacity and may not be able to accept open 
enrollment for next year. 
 
Policy JFCIA: Student Drug Testing and Policy JFCIA-AR: Student Drug Testing were presented for board 
approval on first reading. Discussion ensued regarding funding for the program. Discussion also ensued about this 
being a trial period and the Board having the option to remove the policy later. Mike Martin asked for clarification 
to be made to the first sentence that the testing is required if randomly chosen. Mike Martin made a motion to 
accept the policies as presented with the clarification. Jerry Williams seconded the motion. The motion carried 4-1 
with Richard Borden voting against. 
 
The meeting was temporarily adjourned at 7:00 PM for the Budget Committee Meeting. The meeting resumed at 
8:55 PM. 
 

AUDIENCE COMMENTS continued 
 
Julie Ragan spoke about professional integrity, and about the fatigue and stress of the letters and emails circulating. 
She asked the Board to listen to the voice of the community. 
 
Rachel Kittson-MaQatish spoke about her son attending Lebanon on an interdistrict transfer from Sweet Home 
due to Rob Hess’ efforts in the District. She commented on his professionalism, patience, thoughtfulness, 
intelligence and integrity as a leader. She stressed that the Board and District should focus on school business and 
the education of students. 
 
Stephanie Waters spoke regarding the survey that Eric Frazier had disseminated. She noted that not all employees 
have filled it out and he does not have a complete set of data. She commented on Rob Hess’ attention to detail and 
commented on a birthday card she received from him.  
 

GENERAL BUSINESS continued 
 
2. Action: Approve Resolution 1617-3 Rights of Undocumented Students and Protocols for Immigration 

and Customs Enforcement (ICE) Access to Schools 
 
Resolution 1617-3 was presented for Board approval. The resolution documents the Board’s support for the 
District’s students and families that are concerned at this time and outlines parameters that must be met before ICE 
can gain access to the building or student. Mike Martin made a motion to approve the resolution. Richard Borden 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
  
3. Report: Superintendent Evaluation 
 
The Board reviewed the Superintendent’s Evaluation, which was completed in January 2017. Mike Martin 
complemented the Board on improving the process and creating a more summative and objective evaluation. He 
commented on the need to include the 360 degree survey as well.  
 
4. Discussion: Board Goals 2017-2018 
 
Rob Hess brought forth areas to focus on for next year’s Board Goals, based on his recent evaluation and because 
his contract says that goals should be brought prior to March, which has not been done in past years. In addition to 
current goals of graduation rate, attendance, assessment and opportunities, Rob also suggested recruit and retain 
teachers, increase state school funds for Lebanon, and conduct community-wide 360 degree survey. Rob noted that 
his recent evaluation stressed the importance of teacher retention and recruitment, and that our 5-year new teacher 
retention rate of 46% is unacceptable. He wants to focus on improvement in this area. Mike Martin commented 
that increasing the state school fund is not measurable and is outside of Rob’s direct control. Rob is already working 

Enclosure F-1
Page 190



with Renee Sessler at the OSBA to create the community wide 360-degree survey. It could be completed this spring 
and again next spring to create a baseline and then show a comparison. 
 
5. Discussion: Naming of Pioneer School Library in honor of Sergeant First Class Scot R. Noss 
 
Naming a facility in honor of a person requires two meetings with public comment and then a Board vote. Kellie 
Weber commented that she felt all schools in the District should know about Mr. Noss, and she suggested that the 
scrapbook be rotated between all schools. Rob Hess noted that Mr. Noss’ brother was principal of Pioneer School 
and that his mother taught at Pioneer School, so the location holds extra significance. Discussion ensued. The next 
two board meetings will have public comment regarding the naming of the library in honor of Mr. Noss. 
 
6. Action: Approve Snow Day Make Up Proposal 
 
Administration presented an alternative make up day proposal due to the fact that the District was above required 
hours even without any make up, but there was a need to incorporate more instructional time for students prior to 
graduation and testing. Discussion ensued regarding having licensed staff make up contract days after students are 
done for the year. Richard Borden commented that if we could give two days back to teachers, he felt we should. 
He stated that end of the school year professional development is not productive. Russ McUne expressed concern 
regarding it not being fair to classified staff that may have to use leave. Discussion ensued regarding instruction time 
and the opportunity to say thank you to staff. LEA Union President Maureen Twomey was asked to speak, and she 
noted that the proposal was given as a compromise to remain true to the licensed staff’s contracted days while also 
allowing students to have additional instruction time and not keeping them beyond the school year. Discussion 
ensued. Richard Borden made a motion to approve the proposal as presented, except the June 13 and June 14 
professional development days would be eliminated, resulting in two days not made up for all staff. Jerry Williams 
seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously. 
 

DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 
1. Finance 
 

(a) Report 
 
The Board had no questions on the District’s financials. Linda Darling noted that there is a bill that would 
extend the recreational immunity and close the loophole to give the District more protection. 

 
(b) Report: Audit 

 
 Linda Darling noted that the audit was clean. There were no questions. 
 

(c) Disposal of Obsolete Equipment 
 
Linda Darling reported that the District is disposing of two vans. One has been scrapped for parts and one 
has been used to the end of its lifetime. She noted that the value is such that it did not require reporting, but 
she wanted to inform the Board for transparency. 

 
COMMUNICATION 

 
1. Board Communication 
 
Kellie Weber commented on the high quality teaching she witnessed at the high school recently while attending 
classes with her son. 
 
2. Superintendent Communication 

Enclosure F-1
Page 191



a. Action: Approve 2018-2021 Superintendent Contract 
 
Rob Hess requested the Board’s consideration to renew this contract for another three years. He noted that 
longevity in the District is important to him and he wants to continue to serve. Discussion ensued. Mike Martin 
noted that he opposed the extension and that there is no urgency. He stated that OSBA does not support renewals 
like this even though they are legal. Russ McUne discussed how due to the timings in the contract for renewal and 
evaluation, the Board would be expecting the superintendent to work nearly up to expiration without have a new 
contract. Discussion ensued regarding the contract length. Russ McUne explained the buy-out of the previous 
superintendent, and discussed the sections of the current contract that offer protection to the District if the 
superintendent is complacent or ineffective. He felt the contract was fair to the superintendent and the District. 
Richard Borden stated he thought it was important for the superintendent to know the Board supports him long-
term. He stated we have achieved more during Rob Hess’ tenure. Jerry Williams also commented on the growth of 
the District under Rob Hess. Kellie Weber discussed the public comments made regarding the contract and 
suggested a one-year renewal. Discussion ensued regarding the anonymous allegations. Mike Martin mentioned 
assessment data and graduation rate data. Rob Hess explained that prior to the end of BLHS, the District’s true 
graduation rate was difficult to determine, but the last three years of data provided directly from ODE is a true 
reflection. Rob Hess discussed the improvements in the District. He noted that we still have a long way to go, and 
he wants to be here to do it. Discussion ensued amongst the Board. Rob Hess stated that he would be okay to keep 
the residency language as is. Jerry Williams made a motion to approve the 2018-2021 contract as presented expect 
for the residency language to remain as it was previously. Richard Borden seconded the motion. Kellie Weber and 
Mike Martin commented on the haste of a decision. Mike Martin commented on the raise in the contract. The 
motion carried 3-2 with Kellie Weber and Mike Martin voting against. 
 

b. Action: Approve Amendment to 2015-2018 Superintendent Contract 
 
The proposed amendment provided clarifications to the evaluation and performance goals for the superintendent, 
and adjusted the evaluation date to June. Richard Borden noted that this was much better timing. Richard made a 
motion to approve the amendment to the 2015-2018 contract as presented. Jerry Williams seconded the motion. 
The motion carried 3-2 with Kellie Weber and Mike Martin voting against.  
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Action: Approve December 8, 2016 Board Minutes  
 
Richard Borden made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. Kellie Weber seconded the motion. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 9:50 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Russ McUne, Board Chair 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________________ 
      Rob Hess, Superintendent 

Enclosure F-1
Page 192


	Agenda
	B-1 Seven Oak Report
	C-1 Policies
	C-2 STAR Assessment
	C-3 EL Report
	C-4 Sandridge
	C-5 2017-2018 Calendar
	C-6 Construction Funds
	D-1 Financials
	Overview 3-9-17
	Revenue 3-9-17
	Expenses 3-9-17
	All Funds 3-9-17
	Blank Page

	E-1 360
	F-1 Consent Agenda



